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To the Honorable Wendy O'Quin Perrette, Mayor 
And the Members of die City Council 
City of Bogalusa, Louisiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Bogalusa Louisiana (the City), as of 
and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal controls relevant to die preparation and &ir presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
^plicable to financial audits contained in Gov&-nment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain re^nable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounte and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risk of material misstatement of the financiai statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures diat are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, I express no 
such opinion. An audit includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit 
opinions. 

Basis for Adverse Opinion on the Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units 

The financial statements do not include financial data for the City's discretely presented component units as 
described in Note 1 to the financial statements. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America require the fmancial data for those component units to be reported with the fmancial data of the City's 
primary government unless the City also i^ues financuil stetements for the fimincial reporting entity friat include 
the financial data for its component units. The City has not issued such reporting entity financial statements. The 
effects of this departure from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, on the 
assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, and expenses of the aggregate discretely presented component units has 
not been determined. 
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Adverse Opinion 

In my opinion, because of the significance of the matter discussed in the "Basis for Adverse Opinion on the 
Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units" paragraph, the financial statements referred to above do not 
present fairly, the financial position of the aggregate discretely presented component units of the City as of 
December 31, 2020, or the changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Unmodified Opinions 

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Bogalusa, as of December 31, 2020, and the respective changes in 
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of a Matter 

As described in Note 15 U) the financial statements, the City's total net pension liability for government! and 
business-type activities was approximately $23.7 million at June 30,2020, as determined by each of the four pension 
plans in which file City participates of which $14.4 million of fiiis net liability is from the City of Bogalusa 
Employee's Retirement System which is 23.82% funded requiring the City to continue to evaluate how to provide 
additional funding. The related actuarial valuations that determined the net pension liabilities were performed by 
each of the pension systems' actuaries using various assumptions. Because actual experience may differ from the 
assumptions used, there is a risk that this amount at December 31,2020, could be under or overstated. My opinion 
is not modified with respect to these matters. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion 
and Analysis, the Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, the Schedule of the 
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability for the Retirement Systems, the Schedule of Employers' 
Contributions to each Retirement System, the Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liabifi^ and Related Ratios, the 
Schedule of Single Employer Plan Contributions, the Budgetary Comparison Schedules, and the related notes to the 
required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such infoimation, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Boaid who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge wc obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Other Information 

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the City of Bogalusa's basic financial statements as a whole. The combining, non-major fund financial statements, 
the Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to the Agency Head (compensation schedule), the 
Justice System Funding Schedule - Collecting / Disbursing Entity, and the Justice System Funding Schedule -
Receiving Entity and information required by debt agreements are presented for purposes of additional analysis are 
not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is also presented 
for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. 

The combining non-major fund financial statements, the compensation schedule, the justice system funding 
schedules, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived 
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In my opinion, the supplemental information, described in this paragraph, is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The information required by debt agreements have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, I have also issued my report dated September 30,2021, on my 
consideration of the City of Bogalusa, Louisiana's intemal control over financial reporting and on my tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of intemal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the intemal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Bogalusa, Louisiana 
September 30, 2021 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION A\D ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31.2020 
(UNAUDITED! 

The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) offers the readers of the City of Bogalusa's financial statements 
a narrative overview of the financial activities of the City of Bogalusa for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020 
and 2019. The City's fmancial performance is discussed and analyzed in correlation with the accompanying 
statements and disclosures following this section. 

The reader is urged to continue on past the MD&A and review other important sections of this fmancial report, 
including footnotes, Required Supplemental Information (RSI), and other supplemental information. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The assets of the City of Bogalusa cxcccxicd its liabilities, deferred outflows and deferred inflows at the close 
of 2020 by $22.11 million (total net position). Unrestricted net position is in a deficit position of $23.37 
million. This deficit position is the result of the City's non-capital related liabilities exceeding unrestricted 
assets. A major contributing factor to this unfavmable financial position is the balance of the City's net 
pension liability on the City's participation in various pension pl^s. Two accounting standards, GASB 68 
mdOASB 71, requires the proportionate share of the net pension liability for each cost sharing plan and the 
total City of Bogalusa Employees' Retirement System's (COBERS) net pension liability to be recorded on 
the City's fmancials. The total of this liability at December 31,2020 is $23.70 million. 

• Dming the year, expenses for governmental activities amounted to $12.77 million. These expenses were 
paid fix)m revenues of approximately $17.19 million, consisting of $10.68 million generated from taxes, $.49 
million generated from other revenues for governmental programs, $5.93 million generated from charges for 
services and grants and contributions, and $0.09 million generated from transfers from business-type 
activities. 

• In the City's business-type activities, expenses amounted to approximately $3.60 million and transfers out to 
governmental activities of $.09 million. These expenses were paid from revenues of $3.85 million for service 
charges and $1.21 million for tax revenues and $.14 million in miscellaneous income. 

• At the close of the fiscal year, the City of Bogalusa's governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $4.99 million, an increase of approximately $.97 million. This combined fund balance is largely 
attributable to amounts received from coronavirus relief funds and other federal and dedicated tax funds. 
Most of these governmental fiind balances, excq)t diat for the general fund, are restricted as to their use. 
Business-type funds reported $12.12 million in total net position (largely including capital assets which are 
non-spendable) for the close of die fiscal year, or an increase of ̂ proximately $ 1.51 million. 

• The general fund reported a fiind balance of $2,640,546 as of the end of the fiscal year. This is an increase 
of $2,273,120 over the prior year fund balance of $367,426. The increase in fund balance was due to an 
inCTcase in revenue and other sources of $2,706,673 offset by an increase in expenditures and other uses of 
$145,622 which nets to an increase in change in fund balance of $2,561,051. The net increase was mainly 
due to the City receiving $2,706,975 in federal grants from the Coronavirus Relief Fund that was recognized 
in the general fund. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This annual report consists of four parts - management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial 
statements, required supplementary information, a section that presents combining statements for non-major 
governmental funds, and a section that presents schedules required by state laws or debt requirements. The basic 
financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the City: 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31. 2020 
fUNAUDITEDt 

Govemment-wide Statements 

The first two statements are govemment-wide financial statements Uiat provide both long-term and short-term 
information about the City's overall financial status. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City's assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred 
inflows using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by private-sector companies. 
The difference between the assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows is reported as net position. Over 
time, increases and decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the 
City is improving or weakening. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the most 
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event that gives rise to change 
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for 
some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes). 

Fund Flaancial Statements 

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the City government, reporting 
the City's operations in more detail than the govemment-wide statements. Governmental funds are used to account 
for the same functions reported as governmental activities in the govemment-wide statements. However, unlike the 
govemment-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and 
outflows of available resources, as well as balances of available resources that can be used to meet the City's ongoing 
obligations at the close of the year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the City's near-term financing 
requirements. 

The City uses fifteen governmental funds. There are two major governmental funds, which have separately presented 
information in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances. The 
major funds are the General Fund, and the Industrial Complex Sales Tax Fund. The thirteen non-major funds are 
presented in the aggregate in the governmental fund fmancial statements. Individual fund financial information is 
presented in the combining statements found in the Supplemental Information. 

The City has one proprietary type fund. Proprietary type funds are used to report the same functions presrated as 
business-type activities in the govemment-wide financial statements. The City's proprietary type fund is considered 
to be an enterprise fluid, since the costs of activities are paid for by the customer user fees. The enterprise fund 
accounts for its Utilities System operations, which provides water, sewer, and garbage collection services. 

Fiduciary type fund statements provide financial information on funds for which the City acts as a trustee or agent for 
the benefit of others, such as the City of Bogalusa Employees' Retirement System. 

Other Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required 
supplemental information (Budgetary Comparison Schedules, and the Schedule of Changes in Total Other Post-
Employment Benefit Liability and Related Ratios, Employee Contributions for the City of Bogalusa Employees' 
Retirement System and other schedules for Statewide cost sharing pension plan schedules and OPEB), as well as 
supplemental information presented in the form of combining statements of individual fund fmancial information, 
detailed Budgetary Comparison Schedules for the major funds, the Compensation Schedule, the Justice System 
Funding Schedules, Schedule of Insurance In-force, Public Utility System Operations, and the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMnKR.^1.2ft2fl 
(UNAUDITED^ 

GOVERNMENT-WIPE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

The City reported combined net position at the end of fiscal year 2020 in the amount of $22,108,455, an increase of 
$5,921,374 when compared to the 2019 net position of $16,187,081. The schedule of net position below indicates net 
position for both governmental activities and business-type activities, and combines them into total primary 
government columns. 

Schedule of Net Position 
(in Millions) 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-type 
Activities 

Total Primary 
Government 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 
Current and other assets $ 6.98 S 6.31 $ 1.61 $ 1.13 $ 8.59 S 7.44 
Capital assets 28.65 30.15 16.73 16.48 45.38 46.63 

Total assets 35.63 36.46 18.34 17.61 53.97 54.07 
Deferred outllows of resources 5.47 3.20 0.13 0.21 5.60 3.41 
Long-term liabilities 23.66 28.67 5.01 6.29 28.67 34.96 
Other liabilities 1.92 2.22 0.38 0.42 2.30 2.64 

Total liabilities 25.58 30.89 5.39 6.71 30.97 37.60 
Deferred inflows of resources 5.53 3.20 0.96 0.50 6.49 3.70 

Net position 
Net investment in 

capital assets 28.22 29.52 14.45 14.00 42.67 43.52 
Restricted 2.40 3.73 0.41 0.40 2.81 4.13 
Unrestricted (20.63) r27.68) (2.74} (3.79) (23.371 (31.47) 

Total net position $ 9.99 $ 5.57 $ 12.12 S 10.61 $ 22.11 $ 16.18 

The largest portion of the City of Bogalusa's net position (193%) reflects net investment in capital assets (e.g. land, 
buildings, improvements, streets, bridges, equipment, vehicles, utility systems, and furniture and fixtures), less any 
related debt or deferred inflows used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. These capital assets are used to 
provide services to citizens; therefore, these assets are not available for future spending. It should be noted that the 
resources needed to repay the debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be 
used to liquidate these liabilities. 

An additional portion of the City of Bogalusa's net position (13%) represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of net position (-106%) represents a deficit that is a 
result of pension system debt and other liabilities exceeding assets available to pay those liabilities. 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31. 202fl 
fUNAUDITEDl 

Changes in net position 

The City's total revenue and expenses for govemmenta! and business-type activities are reflected in the following 
chart: 

Changes in Net Positkm 
(in Millkms) 

Goveramental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

Total Primary 
Government 

2020 2019 2020 2019 
Revenues: 
Program revenues; 

2020 2019 

Charts for services S 1.14 $ 1.19 $ 3.85 $ 4.07 $ 4.99 $ 5.26 
Oper. grants & contrib. 3.62 0.68 - • 3.62 0.68 
Capital grants & contrib. 1.17 0.03 • 0.03 1.17 0.06 

General revenues: 
Property and other taxes 3.53 3.35 0.23 0.22 3.76 3.57 
Sales taxes 7.15 6.91 0.98 0.94 8.13 7.85 
Franchise fees 0.33 0.33 - - 0.33 0.33 
Unrestricted nterest - 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.03 
Miscellaneous 0.16 0.26 0.12 0.12 0.28 0.38 
Net loss on dBsohition of joint venture - (0.14) - - - (0.14) 
Transfers 0.09 1.66 (0.09) (1.68) (0.02) 

Total revenues 17.19 14.28 5.11 3.72 22.30 18.00 
Expenses: 

General government 1.30 2.82 - - 1.30 2.82 
Public safety 7.00 6.58 - - 7.00 6.58 
Public works 2.61 2.77 - - 2.61 2.77 
Landfill 0.29 0.38 . . 0,29 0.38 
Culture & recreation 0.34 0.37 . - 0.34 0.37 
Economic development 0,58 0.63 - - 0,58 0.63 
Airport 0.62 0.53 - - 0.62 0.53 
Interest and costs on long term debt 0.03 0.03 - - 0.03 0.03 
Water, sewer. & sarbaee . . 3.60 3.66 3.60 3.66 

Total exposes $ 12.77 $ 14.11 $ 3.60 $ 3.66 $ 16.37 $ 17.77 

Change in net position 4.42 0.17 1.51 0.06 5.93 0.23 

Net nosition. beeinnine 5.57 5.40 10.61 10.53 16.18 15.93 

Net nosition. endine S 9.99 $ 5.57 $ 12.12 s 10.59 S 22.11 S 16.16 

The City's net position within its governmental activities increased by $4,417,501 because of revenues exceeding 
expenses for the year. Governmental revenue increased by $2,911,034 as a result of an increase in grants and 
contributions. The City's grants and contributions increased by approximately $4,083,000 in governmental activities 
due to the City receiving a federal grant from coronavirus relief funds. Expenses in the governmental activities 
decreased by $1,336,216 primarily as a result the net pension liability adjustments and associated deferrals. The City's 
ending net position within its business-type activities increased by $1,503,873. On a combined basis, the City's 
increase in net position, or net gain, was $5,921,374. 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31. 2020 
rUNAUDITED) 

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 

Revenues for the City's governmental activities for the year ended December 31,2020 were $17,188,731. Sales tax 
and proper^ tax revenues are the largest components of revenues (62%). Sales taxes represent ^iproximately 42% 
of recurring govenmumt activity revenue, exclusive of transfers in, and totaled $7,150,079 for 2020, an increase of 
3.5% when compared to 2019. 

The cost of all governmental activities in 2020 was $12,771,230, compared to $14,107,446 in 2019, a decrease of 
9.5% from the prior. 

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental 
Activities 

$8,000,000 

$7,000,000 

$6,000,000 

$5,000,000 

$4,000,000 

$3,000,000 

$2,000,000 

$1,000,000 

EXPENSES PROGRAM REVENUES 

vy iCA 

The graph above shows the City's eight primary governmental activities in 2020, as well as long-term debt interest, 
compared to program-generated revenues covering those expenses. General revenues, such as taxes, cover the 
remaining costs. 

-8-



CITY OF BOGALUSA 
MANAGEMEN rS DISCUSSiOIV AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31. 2020 
(UNAUDITED! 

The following gray^h indicates business-^pe activities revenues by source: 

Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities 

Property taxes 
4% 

Charges for 
services 

74% 

Revenues for the City*s buslness-^e activities for the year ended December 31,2020 were $5,196,685. User 
fees are by far die largest source of revenue (74%) for the City's utility system and garbage collections. Sales tax 
revenue (19%) is largely dedicated to the payment of long-term debt incurred on the sewer system upgrade. The 
City's utility system business-type activities are related to water, sewer, and garbage collection activities. 

Expenses and Revenues - Business-type Activities 

$6,000,000.00 

$4,000,000.00 

$2,000,000.00 

$-
Water, sewer & garbage 

•Expenses I Revenues 

The above graph reveals that the utility system fully supports itself. Of the revenues generated from the utility system, 
the City was able to net transfer $88,777 from the business-type activities to subsidize the governmental activities. 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31. 2020 
fUNAUDITED) 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS 

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020, the City reported combined fund balances in governmental funds of 
approximately $4.99 million, an increase of $.97 million from 2019, The General Fund reported a fund balance of 
approximately $2.6 million at December 31, 2020, which represents an increase in the fiind balance of approximately 
$2.3 million from 2019. The increase in the fund is primarily due to the City receiving Coronavirus Relief Funds in 
2020 that did not occur in 2019. The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. 

The smallest fund balance, $68, is reported in the Industrial Complex Sales Tax Fund. This fimd experienced a $2.02 
million decrease from 2019 primarily due to contributions paid to the City's retirement system as a result of a sales 
tax rededication passed by the City voters which authorized the transfer of the accumulated fund balance. The landfill 
and other governmental funds report aggregate fund balances of approximately $2.35 million, an increase of $0.71 
million over 2019. The balances within the Industrial Complex Sales Tax Fund and the other governmental funds arc, 
with minor exceptions, restricted as to use and cannot be used to fund general operations. 

The Proprietary Fund (the Utility System) reported an increase in net position, resulting from revenues exceeding 
expenses and transfers by $1.50 million. This bottom-line net gain for the System included $.96 million of depreciation 
expense and net transfers out of 30.09 million, and therefore, the utility system's net ineome before depreciation and 
transfers was $ 1.41 million, a positive financial indicator. 

General Fund Budectarv Highlights 

During the fiscal year, the 2020 budget was revised to reflect an anticipated increase in revenues and an increase in 
expenditures. Actual results for 2020 showed revenues and transfers-in were less than the final budget by $43,355. 
Actual expenditures and transfers out were $ 142,755 less than budgeted. 

The General Fund operated at a surplus (or net change in fund balance) of $2,273,120 for 2020. When this positive 
fimd balance is added to the fund balance of $367,426 at the beginning of the year, the resulting general fund balance 
resulted in a surplus at December 31, 2020 was $2,640,546. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At the end of 2020, the City had invested $45.38 million (net of depreciation) in a broad range of capital assets, 
including police, fire, and public works equipment, buildings, park facilities and road, sewer and water system 
infrastructures. The following table represents capital assets at December 31, 2020, at cost less accumulated 
depreciation: 

Governmental Business-type Total Primary 
Activities Activities Government 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 
COST 
Land $ 1,887,765 $ 1,887,765 $ $ S 1,887,765 $ 1,887,765 
Buildings 22,405,255 22,348,005 10,468,398 10,468,398 32,873,653 32,816,403 
Equipment 5,629,948 5,506,438 441,835 441,835 6,071,783 5,948,273 
Infrastmcture 32,375,162 32,375,162 14,297,394 14,197,116 46,672,556 46,572,278 
Improvements - - 19,494,255 18,307,443 19,494,255 18,307,443 
Other 146,611 - - 67,600 146,611 67.600 

$62,444,741 $62,117,370 $ 44,701,882 $43,482,392 $ 107.146,623 $ 105,599,762 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA 
MANAGEMENrS DISCUSSION AIVD ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER .11. 2020 
fUNAUDITED^ 

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 

Governmental Business-type Total Primary 
Activities Activities Government 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 
Building $13,068,737 $12,528,546 $ 8,678,926 $ 8,570,662 $ 21,747,663 $ 21,099,208 
Equipment 4,498,723 4,100,707 409,297 395,608 4,908,020 4,496,315 
Infrastructure 16,223,977 15,334,519 11,195,832 10,886,105 27,419,809 26,220,624 
Improvements - - 7,686,603 7,153,855 7,686,603 7,153,855 

$33,791,437 $31,963,772 $ 27,970,658 $27,006,230 S 61,762,095 S 58,970,002 
Capital 

Assets, net $28,653,304 $30,153,598 $ 16,731,224 $16,476,162 $ 45,384.528 S 46,629,760 

\n governmental activities the City reported a $1,500,294 decrease in net capital assets when compared to 2019. The 
decrease is due to depreciation expense during 2020 exceeding capital cost of projects and equipment costs. Business-
type activities of the City reported a net increase of $255,062 in net capital assets compared to 2020, as a result of 
capital additions exceeding depreciation expense. 

Long-Term Debt 

At the end of the fiscal year 2020, the City had $23,658,488 in outstanding long term debt and other long-term 
liabilities, including notes and bonds payable, net pension liability, claims payable and accrued vacation and sick leave 
for its governmental activities. The outstanding notes and bonds payable are backed by the full faith and credit of the 
City ofBogalusa, 

The City had $5,008,335 outstanding in revenue bonds, certificates of indebtedness, net pension liability, claims 
payable, and compensated absences payable, in its business-type activities. The revenue bonds are backed solely by 
the revenue streams dedicated to payment of those bonds. 

The net pension liability decreased by $5,792,865 bringing the total net pension liability to $23,704,867 as a result of 
contributions to the four retirement systems in which the City participates. This liability remains the most significant 
obligation of the City. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

While the economic outlook looks stable for the nation as a whole for 2020, older and rural communities such as the 
City of Bogalusa face enormous challenges due to an aging and declining population and a stagnant tax base. The 
Coronavirus Pandemic or COVID-19 and associated mitigation efforts to slow the virus spreading has resulted in 
uncertainty on revenue estimates. The City will also apply for available federal and state grants to assist with COVID-
19 mitigation and recovery efforts. 

In the midst of these challenges, the 2021 budget was prepared using reasonable estimates for revenues and anticipated 
expenditures. Sales taxes, the City's main revenue source, arc expected to continue to increase. Expenditures are 
expected to decrease due to implementation of cost cutting measures in an attempt to improve the City's financial 
condition. 

In February 2019, the Louisiana Fiscal Review Committee voted to place the City under fiscal administration in 
accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1351. In May 2019, the Court appointed the City's fiscal administrator 
who was recommended by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor and Attorney General. The objective of the fiscal 
administration process is to make operational changes so that long term fiscal stability can be achieved. The fiscal 
administration is expected to continue during 2021. 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, grantors, and creditors with a general 
overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability for the money it receives. If you have 
any questions concerning this report or need additional fmancial information, contact Stacy Smith at the City of 
Bogalusa's Administrative offices, located in City Hall at 202 Arkansas Avenue, Bogalusa, LA 70427, 

-11 -



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



CITY OF BOGALUSA. LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

DECEMBER 31. 2020 

Primary Government 

ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equi^lents 
Property taxes receivable 
Accounts receivable (net) 
Internal Balances 
Inventory 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Capital assets; 

Land and construction in progress 
Depreciable capital assets, net 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 
Deferred pension contributions 
Deferred amounts related to net pension liability 
Deferred amount related to post employment liability 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Certificates of indebtedness 
Long-term liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Due beyond one year 
Total other post-employment benefit (OPEB) liability 

Due within one year 
Due beyond one year 

Net pension liability 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 
Deferred amounts related to net pension liability 
Deferred amounts related to total OPEB liability 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

NET POSITION: 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 
Industrial Complex 
Capital projects 
Maintenance 
Special programs 

Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

$ 3,869,586 $ 390,855 $ 4,260,441 
2,141,211 144,380 2,285,591 

968.590 674,527 1,643,117 
(123) 123 -

5,315 - 5,315 

- 405,087 405,087 

2,034,376 2,034,376 
26,618,928 16,731,224 43,350,152 
35,637,883 18,346,196 53,984,079 

3,318,188 43,426 3,361,614 
2,060,018 82,973 2,142,991 

87,530 - 87,530 
5.465,736 126,399 5,592,135 

1,601,482 159,754 1,761,236 
219,680 224,106 443,786 
100,000 - 100,000 

334,000 202,000 536,000 
1,812,184 2,211,540 4,023,724 

14,510 14,510 
387,722 - 387,722 

21,110.072 2,594,795 23,704,867 
25,579,650 5,392,195 30,971,845 

5,466,016 961,794 6,427,810 
68,104 - 68,104 

5,534,120 961,794 6,495.914 

28,218,304 14,449,224 42,667,528 

321,742 405,087 726,829 
68 - 68 

615,937 - 615,937 
508,679 - 508,679 
949,116 - 949,116 

(20,623,997) (2,735,705) (23,359,702) 

$ 9,989,849 $ 12,118,606 $ 22,108,455 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA. LOUISfANA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBERS!. 2020 

Primary Government 

Program Revenues 
Net (Expense) Revenue and 

Expenses 

Fees, Fines, and 
Charges for 

Services 
Grants and 

Contributions 
Governmental 

Activities 
Business-type 

Activities Total 

Funclton/Proerams 
Frimarv Cuvernment 

Governmental: 
General govemmenl 
Public safety 
Public works 
Landfill 
Culture and recreation 
Economic development 
Airport 
Interest expense 

$ 1,301,932 
6,999,744 
2,614,055 

287,294 
339,341 
579,010 
624,657 

25.197 

$ 489,789 
248,336 

5,291 
390,479 

3,150 

$ 49,641 
3,396,813 

998,115 

349,556 

$ (762,502) 
(3,354,595) 
(1,615,940) 

(287,294) 
(334,050) 
(188,531) 
(271,951) 
(25.197) 

$ $ (762,502) 
(3,354,595) 
(1,615,940) 

(287,294) 
(334,050) 
(188,531) 
(271,951) 
(25.197) 

Total governmental activities 1Z771.230 1,137,045 4,794,125 (6,840.060) . (6.840.060) 

Business-type: 
Enterprise - Utilities 3,604.035 3,842,652 238.617 238.617 

Total business-type activities 3,604.035 3,842,652 - - 238.617 238.617 

Total primary govemmenl $ 16,375,265 $ 4,979,697 $ 4,794,125 $ (6,840.060) $ 238.617 $ (6,601,443) 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 
Sales taxes 
Other taxes 
Franchise fees 
Interest income 
Other 

Transfers (net) 

3,512,846 
7,150,079 

17,093 
326,229 

3,077 
159,460 
88,777 

234,487 
975,934 

18,993 
124,619 
(88.777) 

3,747,333 
8,126,013 

17,093 
326,229 

22,070 
284,079 

Total general revenues 11,257,561 1.265.256 12,522,817 

Change in net position 4,417,501 1,503,873 5,921,374 

Net position, December 31,2019 5.572,348 10,614,733 16,187,081 

Net position, December 31,2020 $ 9.989,849 $ 12.118,606 $22,108,455 

The accottipanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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CiTV OF BOGALUSA. LOUISIANA 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Industrial Other Non-
Complex Sales Major Total 
Tax - Special Governmental Governmental 

General Revenue Fund Funds Funds 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,510,801 $ 323 $ 2,358,462 $ 3,869,586 
Property taxes receivable 1,485,912 - 655,299 2,141,211 
Accounts receivable 393,983 - 574,607 968,590 
Due from other funds 268,171 . 10,666 278,837 
Inventory of supplies 5,315 - - 5,315 

TOTAL ASSETS 3,664,182 323 3,599,034 7,263,539 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED 
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 3,664,182 $ 323 $ 3,599,034 S 7,263,539 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ 638,552 $ $ 962,930 S 1,601,482 
Accrued expenses 196,849 • 18,328 215,177 
Certificates of indebtedness 100,000 - • 100,000 
Due to other funds 30,202 255 248,503 278,960 
Due to other governments . - -

TOTAL LIABE.ITIES 965,603 255 1,229,761 2,195,619 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Resources recovered prior to time requirement 58,033 - 20,867 78,900 

FUND BALANCES 
J^{oQ-spendab]e: 

Inventory of supplies 5,315 - - 5,315 
Restricted for: 

Debt service - - 325,397 325,397 
Capital projects - - 615,937 615,937 
Maintenance - • 505,264 505,264 
Special programs 35,369 68 901,808 937,245 

<[!nniniittef1: 
Park 37,218 - - 37,218 
Police forfeitures 395 . - 395 

Assigned: 
Sitel 916,310 - - 916,310 

Unassigncd 1,645,939 . - 1,645,939 
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 2,640,546 68 2,348,406 4,989,020 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED 
INFLOWS, AND FUND BALANCES $ 3,664,182 $ 323 $ 3,599,034 $ 7,263,539 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA 
RECQNCn.lATION OF I HE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
DECEMBER 31. 202Q 

Fund balances December 31, 2020 - ̂ Jvemmental funds 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds: 

Cost of capital assets at December 31,2020 
Less: accumulated depreciation as of December 31, 2020 

Property tax rev^ues were collected more than sixty days after year-end 
and, therefore, are not available soon enough to pay for current period 
expenditures: 

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources are not available to pay 
current period expenditures and, therefore, are not reported in the 
governmental funds; 

Deferred outflows of resources - deferred pension contributions 
Deferred outflows of resources - related to other postemployment benefit liability 
Deferred outflows of resources - related to net pension liability 

Deferred inflows of resources - related to net pension liability 
Deferred inflows of resources - related to other post-employment benefits 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable 
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental 
fund liabilities; 

Bonds payable 
Certificate of Indebtedness payable 
Accrued interest payable 
Intergovermnental agreement with Washington Parish 
Net pension liability payable 
Compensated absences 
Total other post-employment benefits (OPEB) liability 
Claims and judgments payable 

Total net position at December 31, 2020 - governmental activities 

4,989,020 

62,444,741 
(33.791,437) 

3,318,188 
87,530 

2,060,018 

(5,466,016) 
(68,104) 

28,653,304 

78,900 

5,465,736 

(5,534,120) 

(305,000) 
(130,000) 

(4,503) 
(336,744) 

(21,110,072) 
(988,440) 
(402,232) 
(386,000) 

$ 9,989,849 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CrrV OF BQGALUSA. LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FIHVDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 

Industrial Other Non-
Complex Sales Major Total 
Tax > Special Governmental Governmental 

General Revenue Fund Funds Funds 
Revenues: 

Ad valorem taxes S G 2,445,345 $ $ 1,070,449 $ 3,515,794 
Sales taxes 3,236,820 180,031 3,733,228 7,150,079 
Other taxes 17,093 - - 17,093 
Licenses and permits 390,841 - - 390,841 
Franchise fees 326,229 - - 326,229 
Intergovernmental 3,186,931 - 1,359,712 4,546,643 
Charges for services 130,008 - - 130,008 
Fines 121,763 - - 121,763 
Interest 1,090 1,119 868 3,077 
Rent - - 392,971 392,971 
Miscelkmeous 179,574 - 54,864 234,438 

Total revenues 10,035,694 181.150 6,612,092 16,828,936 

Expenditures: 
Current -

General government 2,668,084 2,018,029 970,152 5,656,265 
Public safety 5,526,019 - 922,263 6,448,282 
Public works 1,612,066 . 570,125 2,182,191 
Landfill . 287,294 287,294 
Culture and recreation - - 233,522 233,522 
Economic development - 155,661 58,126 213,787 
Airport 77,533 - 133,819 211,352 

Capital outlay 12,000 - 207,719 219,719 
Intergovernmental 267,013 - - 267,013 
Debt Service -

Capital lease payments - - 57,935 57,935 
Bond principal - - 145,000 145,000 
Bond interest - . 27,843 27,843 
Total expenditures 10,162,715 2,173.690 3,613.798 15,950,203 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (127,021) (1,992,540) 2,998,294 878,733 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers to other funds (363,860) (25,000) (2,523,667) (2,912,527) 
Transfers from other funds 2,764,001 - 237,303 3,001,304 
Total other flnancing sources (uses) 2,400,141 (25,000) (2,286,364) 88,777 

Net change in fund balance 2,273,120 (2,017,540) 711,930 967,510 

Fund balance, beginning 367,426 2,017,608 1,636,476 4,021,510 

Fund balance, ending $ 2,640,546 $ 68 $ 2.348.406 $ 4,989,020 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CtTV OF BOCALLfSA. LOUISIANA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 

Net change in Fund balances - governmental funds S 967,510 

The change in net position reported for govemmBnlal activities in the statement of 
activities is different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

Capital outlay and other capitalized purchases, adjustments and reclassifications 327,371 
Depreciation expense, including adjustments and reclassifications tl,827,665) (1,500,294) 

Change in deferral of revenues due to collection beyond 60 days (2,948) 

Loss on dissolution of landfill joint venture not reported at fund level 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to 
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt 
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither 
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds 
report the premiums, discounts when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts 
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities: 

Bond and certificate of indebtedness principal payments 202,93 5 

Other changes in long-term obligations: 
Accrued interest payable 2,646 
Inlergovermnental agreement with Washington Parish 
Change in net pension liability GASH 68 and related deferrals 4,664,538 
Compensated absences (73,879) 
Change in total other post-employment benefit liabiliQ' and related deferrals (91b) 
Pollution remediation liability claims paid 9,000 
Claims and judgments payable 148,909 4,750,298 

Change in net position of govermnental activities $ 4,417,501 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statemenL 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA^ LOUISIANA. 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
ENTERPRISE rUTlLlTIES^ FUND 

DECEMBERS!. 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Property taxes receivable 
Accounts receivable (net) 
Due from other funds 

Total current assets 

Restricted assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Total restricted assets 

Capital assets 
Construction in progress 
Capital assets, cost 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred pension contributions 
Deferred amounts related to net pension liability 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accoimts payable 
Accrued interest expense 
Accrued expenses 
Due to other funds 
Long-term debt, current 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term liabilities: 
Compensated absences 
Net pension liability 
Bonds payable 

Total long-term liabilities 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

390,855 
144,380 
674,527 
29,196 

i.238.95& 

405,087 
405,087 

44,701,882 
(27.970,658) 
16,731.224 

18,375,269 

43,426 
82,973 

126,399 

159,754 
22,440 

201,666 
29,073 

202,000 
614,933 

131,540 
2,594,795 
2,080,000 
4,806,335 

5,421,268 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred amounts related to net pension liability 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

961,794 

14,449,224 
405,087 

(2,735,705) 
S 12,118,606 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA. LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES. AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
ENTERPRISE (UTILITIES) FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.202Q 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Charges for service -

Water, sewer and garbage fees 
Miscellaneous service revenues 

Total operating revenues 

3,842,652 
124.619 

3,967,271 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Salaries and wages 978,791 
Employee benefits 817,520 
Change in net pension liability (1,103,967) 
Utilities 246,150 
Contractual services 770,936 
Supplies and materials 368,801 
Repairs 414,274 

and oil 17,634 
Depreciation 964,428 
Insurance and other 45,879 

Total operating expenses 3,520,446 

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 446,825 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES fEXPENSESI: 
Advalorcm taxes 234,487 
Sales taxes 975,934 
Intergovernmental -
Interest income 18,993 
Interest expense (83,589) 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,145,825 

Net Income before transfers 1,592,650 

Transfers to other funds (1,086,892) 
Transfers from other funds 998,115 

Total transfers (88,777) 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,503,873 

NET POSITION: 
Balance, beginning of year 10,614,733 

Balance, end of year $ 12,118,606 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF BOCALUSA. LOUTSTANA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
ENTERPRISE (UTILITIES^ FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 

Page 1 of 2 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from customers $ 3,932,025 
Cash paid to suppliers (1,910,213) 
Cash paid to employees (1,231,988) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 789,824 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Advalorem taxes 146,938 
Sales taxes 955,011 
Due to other funds (net change in) (86,653) 
Transfers from other funds 998,115 
Transfers to other funds (1,086,892) 

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 926,519 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Intergovernmental grants (capital) 43,196 
Principal payments on debt (197,000) 
Interest paid on debt (85,526) 
Acquisition of capital assets (1,219,490) 

Net cash used in capital financing activities (1,458,820) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Investment income 18,993 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 276,516 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 519,426 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year _$ 795,942 

Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Position; 
Cash and cash equivalents - current $ 390,855 
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 405,087 

S 795,942 

(continued) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA. LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
ENTERPRISE fUTIUTIES) FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEIVIPER 31. 202fl 

Page 2 of 2 

Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided bv opcrattne activities: 

Income from operations $ 446,825 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 964,428 
Bad debt expense 254,330 
Change in assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows: 

Receivables (303,176) 
Deferred outflows related to pensions 84,122 
Accounts payable (46,539) 
Accrued expenses 13,600 
Other payables 
Compensated absences 20,058 
Net pension liability (1,103,967) 
Deferred inflows related to pensions 463,863 
Accrued salaries (3,720) 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 789,824 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF BQGALUSA. LOUISiANA 
STATEMENT OF FLAN NET POSITION 

CITY OF BQGALUSA EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
FIDUCIARY FUND 

JUNK 30. 2Q2fl 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 467,988 

Receivables: 
Employer contributions 
Accrued interest 

109,338 
8,269 

117,607 

Investments at fair market value: 
Fixed income investments 
Equity investments 

Total investments 

1,724,499 
2,196,670 

3,921,169 

TOTAL ASSETS 4,506,764 

LIABILITIES 

NET POSITION OF PENSION PLAN ASSETS $ 4,506,764 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement, 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA. LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES KV FmUCIARY NET POSITION 

CITY OF BQCALUSA EMPLOYEES' RE I tkEMEN I SYSTEM 
FIDUCIARY FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.202Q 

ADDITIONS 
Contributions: 

Members $ 134,404 
Employer 1,041,061 

Total contributions 1,175,465 

Investment income; 
Net increase in fair value of investments 46,170 
Interest and dividends 84,679 

130,849 

Less: investment fee expense (24.858) 

Net investment income 105.991 

Totol additions 1.281.456 

DEDUCTIONS 
Benefits paid 964,904 
DROP withdrawals 48,947 
Refunds of contributions 49,539 
Other ^842 

Total deductions 1.068.232 

INCREASE IN NET POSITION 213,224 

NET POSITION OF PENSION PLAN ASSETS: 
Beginning of the year 4,293,540 

End of the year $ 4,506,764 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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NOTES TO THE PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Notes to the Primary Govemii^t Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended December 31,2020 

INTRODUCTION 

The City of Bogalusa, Louisiana (the City) was incorporated July 4, 1914, and is governed by the provisions of a home 
rule charter adopted October 22, 1977. The City operates under a "mayor-council" form of government which consists of 
an elected council representing the legislative branch of the government and an elected mayor heading the executive 
branch. 

As the municipal goveming authority, for reporting purposes, the City is considered a separate financial reporting entity. 
The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government (municipality), (b) organizations for which the 
primary government is financially accountable, and (c) organizations for which nature and significance of their 
relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements 
to be misleading or incomplete. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASH) Statcmtrnt No. 61 established criteria for determining which 
component units should be considered part of the City for financial reporting purposes. The basic criterion for including 
a potential component unit within the reporting entity is financial accountability. This includes the following criteria: 

1. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and 
a. The ability of the City Council to impose its will on ttiat organization and/or 
b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial 

burdens on the City Council. 

2. Organizations for which the City Council does not appoint a voting majority but which are fiscally dependent on 
the Council and provide specific financial benefits or impose specific financial burdens on the City Council. 

3. Organizations for which the reporting entity's financial statements would be misleading if data of the 
organization were not included because of the nature or significance of the relationship. 

4. Organizations in which it has maj ority equity interest for the purpose of directly facilitating government services. 

The City has chosen to issue financial statements of the primary government and only one component unit. 

CompoDent Unit Included 

City of Bogalasa Employees* Retirement System (COBERS) - CODERS is a legally separate organization, but is 
fiscally dependent upon the City. It meets the definition of a conqionent unit, and is blended into the basic financial 
statement as a Fiduciary Type Fund. 

Component Units Omitted 

City Court of Bogalusa (the Court) -The City Court of Bogalusa is a court of limited jurisdiction and serves Ward 
4 of Washington Parish, Louisiana. Although the City Court Judge is an independently elected official, the Court is 
considered a component unit of the City because of fiscal dependence. The City provides the courtroom and office 
space for the Court. The City also pays salaries and retirement for the Court's administrative staff. 

Constable of City Court of Bogalusa (the Constable) - The office of the Constable of City Court of Bogalusa was 
created by special legislative act R.S. 13:1952(5). The Constable is an elected official, and is responsible for executing 
the orders and mandates of the City Court of Bogalusa. The Constable is also fiscally dependent on the City and 
considered a component unit. 
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As of and for the Year Ended December 31,2020 

INTRODUCTION (continued) 

Christmas In the Park Commission (the Commission) - The Commission was created on November 1, 1995 by 
Ordinance No. 1588. The Commission is governed by an eleven-member board appointed by the Mayor, with 
approval of the City Council. The Commission advises the Mayor and the City Council, stimulates public interest and 
accepts donations to enhance holiday lighting and activities. 

Bogalusa Community Arena Commission (the Commission) - The Bogalusa Community Arena Commission is 
governed by an eleven-member board appointed by the Mayor with approval of the Council. The Commission was 
established by Ordinance No. 1607 dated June21, 1995 and amended on December 20,1995 by Ordinance No. 1623. 

Bogalusa Parks and Recreation Commission (the Commission) - The Bogalusa Parks and Recreation Commission 
is governed by a seventeen-member board appointed by the Mayor with the approval of the Council. The Commission 
was established by Ordinance No. 824 dated March 6, 1973. 

Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained from their respective administrative 
offices. 

Administrative Offices 

City Coiut of Bogalusa Constable of City Court of Bogalusa 
202 Arkansas Avenue 202 Arkansas Avenue 
Bogalusa, LA 70427 Bogalusa, LA 70427 

Ms. Stacy Smith 
Director of Administration 
City of Bogalusa, Louisiana 

Post Office Box 1179 
Bogalusa, LA 70429 

Primary government officials may appoint some, or all, governing board members of organizations that are not included 
as component units in the primary government's reporting entity. These organizations are classified as (a) related 
organizations and (b) joint ventures, as follows: 

Related Organizations 

Housing Authority of Bogalusa - The Mayor, with confirmation of the City Council, appoints all five Commissioners 
of the Housing Au&ority of Bogalusa. However, no further contact or influence exists. 

Washington Economic Development Foundation, Inc. - The Mayor appoints one member and the City Council 
appoints two members of the thirty-member Board of Directors of Washington Economic Development Foundation, Inc., 
which is a non-profit corporation exempt from federal income tax under Internal Revenue Code Section 501 (c)(3). 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Notes to the Primary Government Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended December 31,2020 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accompanying financial statements of the City of Bogalusa have been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and fmancial reporting 
principles. Private Sector Standards of Accounting issued on or prior to November 30, 1989 generally are followed 
in both the government wide fmancial statements and the proprietary fund type financial statements. The City has 
applied GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accoimting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, which eliminates the option for business-type activities to 
follow new FASB pronouncements, although they may continue to be applied as "other accounting literature." 

A. Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of changes in net 
position) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. Governmental 
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary 
government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary govemment 
is financially accountable. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is 
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or 
segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit 
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that 
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and 
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

B. Fund Fiaancial Statements 

Emphasis of fund fmancial reporting is on the major fund level in either the governmental or business-type 
categories. Major funds are presented alone in a separate column, while non-major funds are summarized into a 
single column in the basic financial statements. 

The daily accounts and operations of the City are organized on the basis of individual funds, each of which is 
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund, both major and non-major, are accounted 
for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, equity, revenues, and 
expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Govemment resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual 
funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are 
controlled. The various funds of the primary govemment are grouped into generic fund types and broad fund 
categories as presented below, along with identification of major funds. 

Governmental activities presented as governmental funds in the fund financial statements: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. The General Fund accounts for all 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds. The General Fund is always a major 
fund. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcontinuedl 

B. Fund Financial Statements (continued^ 

Special Revenue Funds — Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources 
(other than major capital projects) that are legally restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes. 
The special revenue fund reported as a major fund in the fund financial statements is as follows: 

The Industrial Complex Sales Tax Fund accounts for the '/i-cent sales tax dedicated to improvement 
maintenance of the City's Industrial Park; however, an election held on July 11, 2020 rededicated the 
V4-cent sales tax and accumulated fund balance to instead be dedicated to pay retirement benefits and 
costs related to pensions including contributions to the City of Bogalusa Employees' Retirement 
System. 

Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the 
payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs. There are no major debt service funds. 

Capital Projects Fund - Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources used for the acquisition 
or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds). There are no major 
capital projects funds. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing or/and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the proprietary funds are user 
fees. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and 
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating 
revenues and expenses. 

The City reports the following major proprietary fund: 

The Utilities Fund accounts for all financial resources of water system, sewer system, and garbage collection. 

Additionally, the City reports the City of Bogalusa Employees' Retirement System (COBERS) as a fiduciary fund 
since the City acts in a fiduciary capacity for the benefit of the employees. Assets held in this fund are segregated 
from the City's general operating assets and are not subject to the claims of general creditors. 

C. Measurement Focus> Basis of Accounting^ and Financial Statement Presentation 

The govcramcnt-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related 
cash flows. Property taxes arc recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. 

Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider 
have been met. As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the govemment-wide 
financial statements. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ^continuedl 

C. Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation fcontinuedl 

COBERS is a single-employer pension plan that covers most permanent City employees except policemen and 
firemen. The COBERS's financial statements arc prepared using the accmal basis of accounting. Plan member 
contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Employer contributions to the plan 
arc recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits 
and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. 

The governmental fund fmancial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and 
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they arc collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers tax revenues to be 
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period, while intergovernmental (grant) 
revenues are considered available if received within one year. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability 
is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when pajnnent is due. 

D. Deposits and Investments 

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. State law and the City's 
investment policy allow the City to invest in collateralized certificates of deposits, government backed securities, 
commercial paper, the state sponsored investment pool, and mutual funds consisting solely of government-backed 
securities. The City has no investments, 

The City of Bogalusa Employees Retirement System's (COBERS) cash and cash equivalents are considered to be 
cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from 
the date of acquisition. State law and the COBERS investment policy allow the COBERS to invest in collateralized 
certificates of deposits, government backed securities, commercial paper, the state sponsored investment pool, and 
mutual funds investing in debt and equity securities, as well as direct equity investments all within limitations for 
each type of investment. 

E. Activity Bctwecp Funds 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the 
fiscal year are referred to as "due to/from other funds". 

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in 
the government-wide fmancial statements as "intemal balances". 

F. Summary of Authorized Ad Valorem and Sales Taxes 

Ad valorem taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of each year. Taxes are levied by the 
City in September or October and are actually billed to the taxpayer in November, Billed taxes become delinquent 
on January 1 of the following year. Revenues from ad valorem taxes are budgeted in the year billed. 

The City bills and collects its own property taxes using the assessed values determined by the Tax Assessor of 
Washington Parish. When the City receives the tax roll, a receivable is set up and revenue is recognized based on 
the assessed values to the extent available. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued^ 

F. Summary of Authorized Ad Valorem and Sales Taxes (continued) 

Sales taxes are recognized as revenue in the month of the underlying sale transaction. The Washington Parish 
Sheriff is authorized to collect and remit this tax to the City. 

The following is a summary of authorized and levied ad valorem taxes. 

_FimdT^£e Purpose 
Authorize 

d Mills 
Levied 
Mills Expiration Date 

General General purpose 10.90 10.90 hidefinite 

General Maintenance, equipment, operations and 3.62 3.62 2027 

salaries of municipal employees 
General Fire department maintenance 2.71 2.71 202? 

General Maintenance and operation of municipal 2.73 2.73 2029 
services 

General Retirement for police department, fire 7.84 7.84 2029 
department, and general city emplo3%es 

General City ofBogalusa Employees' Retirement 2.75 2.75 2025 
System 

Debt Service Street Improvement Bonds 0.50 0.50 Indefinite 

Special Revenue Parks and Recreation Facilities 2.01 2.01 2029 

Special Revenue Municipal Buildings 2.01 2.01 2029 

Special Reveruie Landfill 5.03 5.03 2021 

Enterprise Sewer and water works 2.71 2.71 2027 

Total 42.81 42.81 

The following is a summary of authorized sales taxes. 

Fund Type Purpose Percent Expiration Date 
Special Revenue Street and drainage maintenance 0.25 05/31/27 
Special Revenue Capital improvements 0.15 05/31/27 
Enterprise Water and sewer maintenance 0.15 05/31/27 
General General operations 0.45 05/31/27 
Special Revenue Industrial complex maintenance ^ 0.25 Indefinite 
Special Revenue Employee salaries and benefits 0.50 Indefinite 
Special Revenue Jail operations 0.33 Indefinite 
General General operations ^ 1.00 Indefinite 
Enterprise Wastewater system improvement 0.25 02/01/23 

Total 3.33 

Beginning on January 1, 2019, 50% of the .25 cent tax is dedicated to paying retirement and benefits of the City of 
Bogalusa Employees' Retirement System. On July 11, 2020 an election was held that dedicated the remaining 50% of 
the .25 cent tax to the City of Bogalusa Employees' Retirement System. 
Beginning on January 1,2019 through 2039, 12.5% of this 1 cent tax is dedicated to paying retirement and pension 
benefits of the City of Bogalusa Employees^ Retirement System 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POIJCIKS rcontinned^ 

G. Inventories and Prepaid Exnepses 

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out method. Inventories of the governmental funds are 
recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. Certain payments to vendors reflect 
costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and 
fimd financial statements. 

H. Restricted Assets 

Certain funds of governmental activities, capital lease proceeds, and enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as 
certain resources set aside for bond repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their 
use is limited by applicable bond covenants. 

I. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (roads, bridges, sidewalks, sewer 
infrastructure, and similar items) arc reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities colurrms 
in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated cost if 
historical cost is not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at 
the date of donation. The City maintains a threshold level of $2,500 or more for capitalizing capital assets. 

The costs of nonnal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets 
lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred 
during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value 
of the assets constructed. 

All capital assets, other than land, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives: 

Description Estimated Lives 
Roads, bridges, and infrastructure 20-40 years 
Buildings and building improvements 25-40 years 
Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years 
Vehicles 5 years 
Equipment 5-10 years 

J. Compensated Absences 

Vacation and sick leave in each department is governed by a different union contract and in the case of fire and 
police, civil service and other state laws. 

Public AVorks Department and Finance Department/General Government: 

Vacation time is required to be taken in the year it is earned, except with permission from the appropriate 
department head. The union contract calls for payment for unused vacation at the end of the year. TTie City's 
practice is to pay an employee for up to 90 days at separation. The City allows an employee to bank more vacation 
time than he/she will be paid for in the event he/she needs to use it for an emergency. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES rcontinued^ 

J. Compensated Absences (continued) 

Sick leave is earned at a rate of 2 days a month, is cumulative up to 260 days and is kept on the books until an 
employee separates, An employee can be paid for up to 20 days of sick leave at separation, 

Comp time or bank time is earned at 1.5 times the hours actually worked at an overtime rate. The City's practice 
is to pay an employee for up to 90 days at separation. The City allows an employee to bank more vacation time 
than he/she will be paid for in the event he needs to use it for an emergency. 

Fire Department and Police Department: 

Vacation time is required to be taken in the year it is earned, except with permission from the appropriate chief. 
The City's practice is to pay an employee for up to 90 days at separation, yet the city allows an employee to bank 
more vacation in the event he or she needs to use it for an emergency. 

Comp time or bank time is earned at 1,5 times the hours actually worked at an overtime rate. Currently, bank time 
is unlimited. 

GASB Statement No. 16 Accounting for Compensated Absences requires governments to accrue compensated 
absences only to the extent it is probable that the employer will compensate employees for benefits through cash 
payments conditioned on the employees' termination or retirement. The City has recorded the following liabilities 
as of December 31,2020 for certain salary-related benefits associated with the payment of compensated absences: 

1. Accrued and unused vacation for each employee valued at the employees' current rate of pay. 

2. Accrued and unused sick leave up to the maximum to be paid upon termination. 

3. A total of 100% of the compensatory leave for each employee valued at the employees' current rate of 
pay. 

In the government-wide financial statements and the propriety fund types fund statements, the total compensated 
absences liability is recorded as an expense and a long-term obligation and allocated on a functional basis. In 
accordance with GASB Interpretation No.6 Recognition and Measurement of Certain Liabilities and Expenditures 
in Governmental Fund Financial Statements, (issued in March of 2000), no compensated absences liability is 
recorded at December 31,2020, in the governmental fund financial statements. The liquidation of the compensated 
absence liabilities will be paid proportional to funds in which the compensation was paid. 

K. Fund Balance 

The City reports fund balance in accordance with GASB Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental 
Fund Type Definitions. This Statement provides definitions of fund balance categories that are designed to make 
the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a government's fund balance more transparent. The following 
classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources 
can be used; 

* Nonspendable fund balance - amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as inventory or prepaid 
expenses) or are required to be maintained intact; 

• Restricted fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantor, 
bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling 
legislation; 
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1. SUMMARY or SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcontinued^ 

^ Fund Balance (continued) 

• Committed fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using its 
highest level of decision-making authority by a vote of the City Council; to be reported as committed, 
amoimts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the government takes the same highest level action 
to remove or change the constraint; 

• Assigned fund balance - amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be 
expressed by the governing body or by an ofTicial or body to which the govemmental body delegates the 
authority such as the City's management; 

• Unassigned fund balance - amounts that are available for any purpose; positive amounts are reported only 
in the general fund. 

When an expenditure is incurred for the purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is 
available, the City considers restricted flmds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which 
other fund balances are available, the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, 
then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the City has provided otherwise in its 
commitment or assignment actions. 

L. Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable are reported net of an allowance for uncollectable balances. The more significant accounts 
receivable is recorded for amounts due from other governments in the govemmental activities and funds, and for 
customers' accounts in the business-type activities and the utility fund. Customer Utility accounts are estimated 
to be uncollectable upon coming sixty days past due. Amounts due from governments are estimated to be 
uncollectable based upon the facts and circumstances of the grant agreement or funding source. 

M, Deferred Outflows and Inflows 

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, 
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. This standard provides guidance for reporting the financial 
statement elements of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflows 
represent the consumption of the government's net position that is applicable to a future reporting period. A 
deferred inflow represents the acquisition of net position that is applicable to a future reporting period. 

Because deferred outflows and deferred inflows are, by definition, neither assets nor liabilities, the statement of 
net assets title is now referred to as the statement of net position. 

N. Net Position 

The statement of net position reports net position as the difference between all other elements in a statement of 
net position and should be displayed in three components—net investment in capital assets, restricted net position 
(distinguishing between major categories of restrictions), and unrestricted net position. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcontinuedl 

M. Net Position (continued) 

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the 
outstanding balance of borrowings for capital asset acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets, 
Increased by deferred outflows of resources attributable to capital asset acquisition, construction or 
improvement, and deferred inflows of resources attributable to either capital asset acquisition, construction, or 
improvement or to capital asset related debt. Capital-related debt or deferred inflows equal to unspent capital 
asset related debt proceeds or deferred inflows of resources is included in calculating either restricted or 
unrestricted net position, depending upon whether the unspent amounts are restricted. 

Restricted net position reflects net position when there are limitations imposed on a net position's use by external 
parties such as creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other govemments. Restricted net position consists of 
restricted assets less liabilities related to restricted assets less deferred inflows related to restricted assets. 
Liabilities and deferred inflows related to restricted assets include liabilities and deferred inflows to be liquidated 
with restricted assets and arising from the same resource flow that results in restricted assets. When both restricted 
and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, then 
umestricted resources as they are needed. 

Unrestricted net position is the balance (deficit) of all other elements in a statement of net position remaining after 
net investment in capital assets and restricted net position. 

N. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures, and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

o. Current Year Adoption of New Accounting Standards 

The City adopted Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 83, Certain Asset Retirement 
Obligations (ARC). This standard establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of an 
ARO liability and a corresponding deferred outflow of resources. An ARO is a legally enforceable liability 
associated with the sale, recycling, retirement, abandonment or disposal in some other manner of a tangible capital 
asset permanently removed from service. The implementation of this standard had no effect on net position or 
fund balance for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2020. 

The City adopted Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 84, Fiduciary Activities. This 
standard defines and establishes criteria for identifying and reporting fiduciary activities. The focus of the criteria 
is on (1) whether the City controls the assets in a fiduciary activity and (2) there are separate identifiable 
beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. The implementation of this standard had no effect on net 
position or fund balance for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2020. 

The City adopted Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 88, Certain Disclosures Related 
to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. This standard required additional disclosures related 
to debt including segregating direct borrowing and direct placement debt from other debt. Note disclosures 
included unused lines of credit, assets pledged as collateral for debt and certain terms specified in the debt 
agreements including events of default, termination events and subjective acceleration clauses (see Notes 11 and 
12). The implementation of this standard had no effect on net position or fund balance for the fiscal year ending 
December 31, 2020. 
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2. STEWARDSHIP. COMPLIANCE^ AND ACCOUNTABILITV 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in these financial statements: 

a. The Mayor submits to the council a proposed operating budget at least forty-five days prior to the 
beginning of each fiscal year. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and total 
anticipated revenues. 

b. At the meeting of the council at which the operating budget is submitted, the council orders a public 
hearing on it. 

c. At least ten days prior to the date of such hearing, the council publishes in the official joumal a general 
summary of the proposed budget. 

d. After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to finalize and implement 
the budget, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance, no later than the twenty-
seventh day of the last month of the calendar year. 

c. Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department, office, or agency to 
another or involving increases in expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding amounts estimated 
require the adoption of an ordinance by the Council. 

f. Every appropriation, except an appropriation for a capital expenditure, lapses at the close of the fiscal 
year to the extent that it has not been expended. 

g. Budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended 
from time to time by the City Council. 

3. DEPOSITS. CASH EQUIVALENTS. AND INVESTME\TS 

A. Cftv of Bogalusa 

At December 31, 2020, the City had cash (book balances) totaling $4,665,528 consisting primarily of demand 
deposit accounts at local banks. These deposits were stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, 
these deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of 
securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit 
insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 40, "Deposit and Investment Risk 
Disclosures" requires disclosure of custodial credit risk for bank deposits. Custodial risk is the risk that in the event 
of bank failure, the government's deposits may not be returned. Under the state law, all deposits are required to be 
secured by federal depository insurance or the pledge of securities held by the pledging banks agent in the City of 
Bogalusa's name. At December 31,2020, the City's bank balances amounted to $5,062,614. Ofthe bank balances, 
$250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and $4,812,614 was protected against custodial credit risk 
by collateral held by the pledging banks' trust department or agent in the City's name at December 31,2020. 
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3. DEPOSITS. CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS Tcontinued^ 

B. City of Bogalusa Employees* Retirement System fCOBERS'i 

Cash and Cash Eauivaients; 

At June 30, 2020, cash and cash equivalents consisted of $97,685 invested in short-term money market mutual 
funds and $370,303 in a commercial checking account. The commercial checking account is insured by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000, while the money market funds are not subject to custodial credit 
risk. 

Investments: 

In accordance with LR5 11:263, the System is authorized to invest under the Prudent-Person Rule. The Prudent-
Person Rule shall require each fiduciary of a retirement system and each board of trustees acting collectively on 
behalf of each system to act with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances prevailing that a 
prudent institutional investor acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of 
an enterprise of a like character and with like aims. Notwithstanding the Prudent-Person Rule, the System's 
investment policy allows for fifty percent of the total portfolio to be invested in equity securities and fifty percent 
to be invested in fixed income securities consisting of U.S. Government and U.S. corporation bonds and notes. 
Rebalancing occurs when the investment weight of the categories varies by five percent or more. 

Concentration of Credit Risk: 

Concentration of credit risk is defmed as the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the System's investment in 
a single issuer. The System's investment policy states that no more than 5 percent of the total stock portfolio value 
at market may be invested in the common stock of an organization. 

In addition, with respect to fixed income securities, exposure to any economic sector shall not exceed greater of 
30% of the portfolio at market value and investments in one issuer shall not exceed 5% of the fixed income 
portfolio's market value unless otherwise authorized by the Board. Investments in one Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage Corporation, two U.S. Treasury Notes, and one mortgage-backed securities' Exchange Traded Fund 
issued by U.S. government agencies (MBS ETF) represent a concentration greater than 5,5% of total investments 
as of June 30,2020. The issuer's percentages of total fixed income were 6,4%, 13.2%, and 20.7%, respectively, at 
December 31, 2020. 

-35-



CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Notes to the Primaiy Govemment Fintuicial Statements 

As of and for die Year End<xl December 31,2020 

3. DEPOSITS. CASH EOUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS fcontinued^ 

B. City of Boealusa Employees' Retirement System fCOBERSl (continued) 

Credit Risk: 

Credit risk is defined as the risk that an issuer or other counter party to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations, The following are credit risk ratings of the System's investments in long-term debt securities as of 
June 30,2020. 

Below is a schedule of debt securities owned with their applicable ratings: 

Federal 
Federal 

Home Loan 
Federal 
National 

Government 
National Fixed U.S. 

Corporate Home Loan Mortgage Mortgage Mortgage Municpal Income Treasury 
Rating Bonds Bank Corp. Association Association Obligations ETF Notes Total 

Al $ 69,642 $ $ $ S $ $ I $ 69,642 
A2 167,975 - - - - - • - 167,975 
A3 92,044 - - - - - - - 92,044 
Aal • . - - - - . . 
A^ - - - - - - - . 
Aa3 33,011 - - - - 53,515 - 86,527 
Asa 32,784 51,193 - - - - .. 83,977 

AGY - - 110,570 147,542 2,099 - - 260,211 
Baal 145,360 . - . . . - 145,360 
Baa2 - . . - • _• -
Baa3 - - - -• • - -
TSY - - - - - - 461,313 461,313 
ETF - . - . . 357.450 - 357.450 

$ 540,816 S 51.193 S 110,570 S $ 2.099 S 53,515 S 357,450 S 46U13 S 1,724.499 

The System's investment policy limits its investments to corporate debt issues rated equivalent of B or better by 
Standard & Poor's or B2 by Moody's Investor Services. If securities fall to a CCC rating, they are to be eliminated 
in a timely manner. 

Rate of return. For the year ended June 30, 2020, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan 
investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 6.50%. The money-weighted rate of return expr^ses 
investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. 

Custodial Credit Risk; 

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, 
a govemment will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are in the possession 
of an outside party. Exposure to custodial credit risk arises when securities are uninsured, or are not registered in 
the name of the Retirement System, and are held by either the counterparty or the counterparty's trust department 
or agent, but not in the System's name. The System was not exposed to custodial credit risk as of June 30,2020. 
However, the System does not have a policy regarding custodial credit risk. 
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3. DEPOSITS. CASH EOUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS fcontinucd) 

B, Citvof Bogalnsa Emolovces* Retirement System fCOBERSI (continued) 

Interest Rate Risk; 

Interest rate risk is defmed as the risk that changes in interest rates in the general market will adversely affect the 
fair value of an investment. The holding period of an investment security can be an indicator of interest rate risk 
exposure. As of June 30, 2020, the System had the following investments in long-term debt securities and 
maturities: 

Fair Value 
Less Than 1 

Year 1-5 Years 6-10 Years 

Greater 
Than 10 

Years 
Corporate Bonds 3 ; 540,816 $ - $ 145,046 $ 289,608 $ 106,162 
Federal National Mortgage Association 147,542 - - - 147,542 
Government National Mortgage Associatk 2,099 25 - 376 1,698 
Federal Home Loan Bank 51,193 51,193 . . . 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. 110,570 200 iio;)70 -
Municipal Obligations 53,516 - 53,516 - -
Fixed Income ETF 357,450 - - . 357,450 
U.S Treasury Notes 461,313 . 27,199 323,905 110,209 

S ; 1.724.499 $ 51.418 S 336,131 S 613.889 $ 723,061 

The System has no formal policy regarding interest rate risk. 

The System may invest in collateralized mortgage obligations. These securities are based on cash flows from 
interest payments on underlying mortgages. Therefore, they arc sensitive to prepayments by mortgagees, which 
may result from a decline in interest rates. The holding periods for the collateralized mortgage obligations above 
are based on maturity dates of the securities. 
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3. DEPOSITS. CASH EQUTVAI.ENTS AND INVESTMENTS ^continued) 

B. City of Bogalusa Employees* Retirement Svstem fCOBERSl (continued) 

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted 
accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. 
Level I inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are for significant other 
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. A summary of the COBERS's investments 
along with the fair value hierarchy levels of each type of investment are as follows: 

Quoted Prices in Significant Other 
Active Maricets Observable 

Fixed Income Assets 6/30/2020 (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) 
Corporate Bonds $ 540,816 $ $ 540,816 
Federal National Mortgage Association 147,542 - 147,542 
Government National Mortgage Association 2,099 - 2,099 
Federal Home Loan Bank 51,193 51,193 -
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. 110,570 110,570 
Municipal Obligations 53,516 - 53,516 
Fixed Income ETF 357,450 357,450 -
U.S Treasury Notes 461,313 461,313 -

Total Fixed Income Assets 1,724,499 869,956 854,543 
Equity Investments 

Value Equity 2.196.670 2.196.670 . 
Total Equity Investments 2.196.670 2,196,670 -

Total Investments at Fair Value Level $ 3,921,169 $ 3,066,626 S 854,543 

Level 2 inputs are valued using a market based approach comprised of a combination of directly observable 
quoted prices and a matrix pricing technique that relies on the securities' relationship to other benchmark quoted 
prices. 
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4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Accounts receivable consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Allowances for uncollectible 
accounts are based upon historical trends, period aging and prior write-offs of similar accounts receivable, receivables 
balances, and sales and franchise tax collections. 

Accounts receivable at December 31, 2020 were as follows: 

Governmental Activities: Sales T axes Grants Other Total 
General Fund 
Industrial Complex Sales T ax 
Non-Major Governmental Funds 

$ 320,185 3 

388.389 

fi 

183,726 

$73,798 

2,492 

$ 393,983 

574,607 
Total S 708,574 a S 183,726 $ 76,290 S 968,590 

Business-tvpe Activities; Sales T axes 

Customer 
Utility 

Accounts Other Total 
Operating Fund 
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 

$ 96,653 3 5 2,330,053 
(1,752,179) 

$ $2,426,706 
(1,752,179) 

Total $ 96,653 a > 577,874 $ $ 674,527 

5. CASH RESTRICTED UNDER DEBT AGREEMENTS 

At December 31,2020, the City held restricted cash required by bond covenants pertaining to the $2,670,000 Revenue 
Refunding Bonds 2012, $1,000,000 Water Revenue Bonds 2009A and $3,000,000 Water Revenue Bonds 2009B as 
follows: 

Wastewater Improvement Sales Tax 
Water Revenue Bond Reserve Account 
Water Revenue Bond Sinking Account 
Water Revenue Bond Contingency Account 

Total business-type activities restricted cash 

$ 49,854 
147,674 
106,959 
100.600 

$ 405.087 

The City is required by its Loan and Pledge Agreement with the Louisiana Department of Health and Hospitals 
pursuant to the issuance of the 2009A and B bonds (see note 13) to make monthly deposits into its water revenue 
bond and sinking fund cash accounts. Additionally, the Water Revenue Bond Reserve Account and the Water 
Revenue Contingency Accounts are required to maintain minimum balances. As of December 31,2020 the City fully 
funded the Water Revenue Bond Sinking Account and maintained the required minimum balance. 
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6. CAPITAL ASSETS 

A. Governmental Activities 

The following is a summary of the changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2020: 

Balance 
12/31/2019 Additions Deletions 

Balance 
12/31/2020 

Cost 
Not belnv dEoreciated 

Land $ 1,887,765 $ - $ - $ 1,887,765 
Construction in progress - 146,611 146,611 

1,887,765 146,611 2,034,376 

Beine denredared 
Buildings 22,348,005 57,250 22,405,255 
Infrastructure 32,375,162 - 32,375,162 
Furniture and equipment 5,506,438 123,510 5.629,948 

60,229,605 180,760 60,410,365 

Less: accumulated dEoraciation 
Buildings (12,528,546) (540,191) (13,068,737) 
Infrastructure (15,334,519) (889,458) (16,223,977) 
Furniture and equ^ment (4,100,707) (398,016) (4,498,723) 

(31,963,772) (1,827,665) (33,791,437) 

Net capital assets being depreciated 28,265,833 (1,646,905) 26,618,928 

Total capital assets, net $ 30,153,598 $ (1,500,294) $ - $ 28,653,304 

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2020 was charged to the following governmental fimctions: 

General government $ 98,143 
Public safety 227,650 
Public works 609,162 
Culture and recreation 114,182 
Economic Development 365,223 
Airport 413,305 

$ 1,827,665 
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6. CAPITAL ASSETS fcontinuedl 

B. Busincss-tvpe Activities 

The following is a summary of the changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2020: 

Balance 
12/31/2019 Additions Deletions 

Balance 
12/31/2020 

Cost 
Not beine deoreciated 

Construction in progress $ 67,600 $ 1.119,212 $ (1,186.812) ; $ 

Cost 
Not beine deoreciated 

Construction in progress 

67,600 1,119,212 (1,186,812) . 

Beinp deoreciaEed 
Water and sewer plant 10,468,398 - - 10,468,398 
Sewer treatment plant 2,840,772 25,379 - 2,866,151 
Water well 1,686,604 - • 1,686,604 
Collection system 2,744,249 - - 2,744,249 
Sewer pumping system 1,804,681 74,899 - 1,879,580 
Water line 5,120,810 - - 5,120,810 
Equipment and vehicles 441,835 - - 441,835 
Sewer treatment improvements 13,419,285 1,186,812 - 14,606,097 
Water meter 4,888,158 - - 4,888,158 

43,414,792 1,287,090 - 44,701,882 

Less: accumulated deDreclation 
Water and sewer plant (8,570,662) (108,264) - (8,678,926) 
Sewer treatment plant (2,716,129) (30,594) - (2,746,723) 
Water well (1,056,400) (59,269) - (1,115,669) 
Collection system (2,744,249) - - (2,744,249) 
Sewer pumping system (1,512,091) (91,844) - (1,603,935) 
Water line (2,857,236) (128,020) - (2,985,256) 
Equipment and vehicles (395,608) (13,689) - (409,297) 
Sewer treatment improvements (5,516,761) (337,221) - (5,853,982) 
Water meter (1,637,094) (195,527) - (1.832,621) 

Net capital assets being depreciated 

Total capital assets, net 

(27.006.230) (964.428) - (27,970.658) 

Net capital assets being depreciated 

Total capital assets, net 

16,408,562 322,662 16,731,224 Net capital assets being depreciated 

Total capital assets, net $ 16,476,162 : % 1,441,874 $ (1,186,812) : & 16,731,224 
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7. INTERFUND BALANCES 

From time to time, cash may be borrowed between funds or costs may be fronted by one fund for another fund resulting 
in inter-fund balances. The amounts are not expected to be repaid within one year as they depend on the liming of 
receipts in other funds. The following inter-fund balances exist at December 31, 2020. 

Due From Due to 
Other Funds Other Funds 

Governmental Funds: 
General Fund $ 268,171 $ 30,202 
Industrial Complex Sales Tax Fund - 255 
Nonmajor governmental funds 10,666 248,503 

Proprietarv Funds: 
Utility System 29,196 29,073 

$ 308,033 $ 308,033 

8. INTERFUND TRANSFERvS 

Transfers between funds occur to provide reimbursement of certain operating costs and are not expected to be 
repaid. Transfers between funds during 2020 occurred as follows: 

Transfers In Transfers Out 
Governmental Funds: 

General Fund $ 2,764,001 $ 363,860 
Industrial Complex Sales Tax Fund - 25,000 
Nonmajor governmental funds 237,303 2,523,667 

Proprietarv Funds: 
Utility System 1,134,672 1,223,449 

$ 4,135,976 $ 4,135,976 

9, ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS FOR SALARIES 

The State of Louisiana sends a check monthly for approximately $500 directly to each individual fireman and 
policeman that is qualified and has been employed by the City for at least one year. Policemen received a total of 
$237,500, and the firemen received $162,867 in 2020. The total payments of $400,367 have been included in the fund 
financial statements in intergovernmental revenue and public safety expenditures. 
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10. SHORT-TERM DKBT 

The City borrows money during the year to finance expenditures for general operations that are budgeted evenly 
throughout the year, which are expected to be paid from ad valorem tax revenues collected at year-end. 

Short-term debt activity for the year ended December 31,2020 was as follows: 

Beginning Funds 
Balance 

Ending 
Borrowed Repayments Balance 

Certificates of Indebtedness $ 800,000 $ 100,000 S (800,000) $ 100,000 

The borrowings for 2020 were advanced to the City through a scries of certificates of indebtedness bearing no interest, 
on the first $100,000 borrowed and interest of 2.77% thereafter, per terms of the agreement. 

11. GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

a. Activities 

Long-term liability activity of governmental activities for the year ended December 31,2020 was as follows: 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions 

Ending 
Balance 

Amounts 
Due within 
One Year 

Bonds Payable $ 450,000 $ $ (145,000) $ 305,000 $ 150,000 
Certificates of indebtedness 187,935 - (57,935) 130,000 64,000 
Compensated Absences 914,561 104,374 (30,495) 988,440 -
Claims and Judgments 148,909 (148,909) - -
Pollution Remediation Obligations 395,000 - (9,000) 386,000 -
Washington Parish -

Intergovernmental Agreement 336,744 - 336,744 120,000 
$2,433,149 $ 104,374 $ (391.339) $2,146,184 $ 334,000 

b. Bonds Payable 

On December 4,2017, the City issued Certificate of Indebtedness, Series 2017, in the amount of $312,000 for the 
purpose of financing the purchase of a new firetruck. The Certificates principal payments are due on October 1" 
of each year beginning 2018 through 2022. Interest on the Certificates is 3.22% and is payable semiannually in 
April and October. 

Bonds and certificates of indebtedness payable were as follows at December 31,2020: 

Type of 
Debt 

Interest 
Rates 

Date of 
Issuance 

Original 
Balance 

Ending 
Balance 

General Obligation 2007 

Certificates of indebtedness 2017 

G.O 
^2 

4.125-6.0% 10/1/2007 

3.22% 12/4/2017 

$ 1,750,000 

312,000 

$ 305,000 

130,000 

$ 435,000 

G.O. = General obligation bond C = Certificate of Indebtedness 
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11. GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS fcontinued^ 

b. Bonds Pavable (continued) 

^Thcse bonds were offered for public sale that are subject to the following events of default, tennination events, 
and acceleration clauses: 

• Events of default with finance-related consequences - These bonds would be in default for failure of 
payment of principal and interest when due, non-payment related defaults, unscheduled draws on debt 
service reserves or credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties, substitution of credit or liquidity 
providers or failure to perform, modifications to rights of bondholders, defeasances, release, substitution 
or sale of property securing repayment of the bonds, bond rating changes, filing petition or seeking relief 
under Federal or State bankruptcy law, adverse tax opinions or other material notices or determinations 
with respect to the tax status of the bonds, the consummation of a merger, consolidation or acquisition 
involving the Issuer or the sale of substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, and an appointment of a 
successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee (if material). The City has the authority 
to assess and collect property taxes that will be used to repay this debt. 

• Termination events with finance related consequences - Events that will result in finance related 
consequences include bonds being callable early and insufficient taxes levied and collected to meet debt 
service requirements on all bonds outstanding. 

• Subjective acceleration clauses - The City may refund early with refunding certificates or bonds, and 
the City may defease bonds. 

^This bond is a direct placement bond that is subject to the following events of default, termination events, and 
acceleration clauses: 

• Events of default with finance-related consequences - none noted 
• Termination events with finance related consequences — none noted 
• Subjective acceleration clauses — none noted 

c. Annual debt service requirements of bonds and notes payable 

The aimual requirements to service all debts outstanding are as follows for the next five years and for five year 
increments thereafter: 

Bonds Payable Certificates of Indebtedness Principal 

Principal Interest Principal Interest Total 
2021 $ 150,000 $ 10,543 S 64,000 $ 4,186 S 214,000 
2022 155.000 3,565 66,000 2,125 221,000 

$ 305,000 $ 14,108 S 130,000 $ 6,311 $ 435,000 
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11. GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

d. Washington Parish Intergovernmental Agreement 

As of December 31, 2019, the City and die Washington Parish Government (the Parish) entered into 
intergovernmental agreement (lA) to dissolve the Choctaw Landfill Joint Venture (the landfill). The CUV was 
formed in a 1985, the City and the Washington Parish Council entered into a verbal agreement and in 1998 
formalized in writing for the construction and operation in a joint venture named Choctaw Road Landfill with 
the City's equity of 41.9% and the Parish's equity of 58.1%. The City's funding of the landfill was through a 5-
mill ad-valorem tax that has been insufficient to support the City's portion of the landfill operational costs and 
capital expenditures. The continued operation of the landfill with the City's 5-inill funding source was fiscally 
detrimental. The City and the Parish entered into the lA where the City agreed to a long term liability of $336,744 
due to the Parish expected to be repaid over three years with the full amount due as of December 31, 2023. In 
exchange, effective January 1, 2020, the City agreed to a 10-year contract to continue to use the landfill for its 
waste at an agreed upon price of $37.50 per ton adjusted annually by the consumer price index. The City agreed 
to repay die debt to the Parish by transferring the difference between the 5-mill ad-valorem tax revenue and the 
per ton disposal fee. As of December 31,2020 the balance due to parish was $336,744. 

12. BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

a. Activity 

Long-term debt activity of business-type activities for the year ended December 31,2020 was as follows: 

Amounts 
Beginning Ending Due within 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 

Bonds Payable $2,479,000 3 S $ (197,000) $2,282,000 $ 202,000 
111,482 20,058 131,540 -

$2,590,482 1 $ 20,058 $ (197,000) $2,413,540 $ 202,000 

b. Bonds Payable 

The City entered into a series of agreements with the Louisiana Department of Health and Hospitals (the 
Department) as part of the Build America Bonds Program whereby the Department has committed to loan the 
City up to $5,000,000 to fund construction of a water meter system (project). The loan is to be advanced in 
incremental amounts as project costs are incurred. The indebtedness to the City will be evidenced through the 
Series 2009A and 2009B bonds in the amounts of $1,000,000 and $3,000,000, respectively, and these bonds will 
mature in 20 principal installments, payable annually on each September 1 beginning in 2011. Each annual 
installment due is based upon a pre-dctcrmined percentage of the ultimate amount of the borrowing that is not 
forgivable (see forgiveness provisions in the following paragraph). Interest on the bonds is incurred at the rate of 
2.95% and payment thereof began March 1,2010 and continues to occur semi-annually thereafter. 
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12. BUSINESS-TYPE ACnVITIES LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS tconrinuedl 

b. Bonds Payable (continued) 

The 2009A scries bonck were funded with amounts provided under the American Recovery and Reinvestment 
Act (ARRA). One half of the 2009A bond funds advanced to the City is forgivable as a debt upon advancement. 
The City received no advances of 2009A bond funds during 2017 as the bonds were fully funded during 2012. 

The City is required to create reserve accounts and maintain minimum balances within that account and to make 
monthly deposits into a sinking fund. As of December 31,2020, the City fully funded the Water Revenue Bond 
Sinking Account and maintained the required minimum balance. 

Bonds outstanding were as follows at December 31, 2020: 

Type of Interest Date of Original Ending 
Debt Rat^ Issuance Balance Bafance 

Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2(I09A, R' 2.95% Various $1,000,000 $ 603,000 
Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2009B, R' 2.95% Various 3,000,000 1.679,000 

$4,000,000 $2,282,000 

R = Tax revenue bond 

^This bond is a direct placement bond that is subject to the following events of default, termination events, and acceleration 
clauses: 

• Events of default with finance-related consequences - These bonds would be in default for failure of payment of 
principal and interest when due, non-performance of observance of covenants, agreements, or conditions in 
Certificate Resolution or supplemental resolution continuing for more than 45 days after written notice of non
performance or observance, and filing petition or seeking relief under Federal or State bankruptcy law. 

• Termination events with finance related consequences - Events that will result in finance related consequences 
include bonds being callable early and insufficient taxes levied and collected to meet debt service requirements 
on all bonds outstanding. 

• Subjective acceleration clauses - The City may refund early with refunding certificates or bonds, and the City 
may defease these bonds. 

c. Annual debt service requirements 

A schedule of annual debt service requirements for the bonds for each of the next five years and for five-year 
increments thereafter is as follows: 

Bonds Payable 
Principal Interest Total 

2021 $ 202,000 $ 67,319 $ 269,319 
2022 207,000 61,360 268,360 
2023 213,000 55,254 268,254 
2024 219,000 48,970 267,970 
2025 224,000 42,510 266,510 

2026-2030 1,217,000 105,787 1,322,787 
$2,282,000 $ 381,200 $2,663,200 
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12. LEGAL DEBT MARGIN 

Conoputation of the legal debt margin for general obligation bonds parable from ad-valorem tax is as follows. The 
City is within its allowed legal debt limitation. 

Ad-valcrem taxes: 
Assessed valuation, 2020 tax rolls $ 86.0Q0.S7Q 

Debt limit: 35% of assessed valuation S 30.415.305 

General obligation bonds outstanding at December 31,2020, 
secured by ad-valorcm tax 

13. PENSION PLANS 

The City of Bogalusa (the City) participates in the City of Bogalusa Employees' Retirement System (COBERS) which 
is a single employer pension plan that is administered by a Board of Trustees as established by the City of Bogalusa's 
Home Rule Charter. The City is also a participating employer in three State-wide cost-sharing multiple employer 
defined benefit pension plans that include the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS), the 
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS) and the Firefighters' Retirement System (FRS). Article 
X, Section 29(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions 
of the State-wide plans to the State Legislature. Each system is administered by a separate board of trustees. 

Each of the State-wide Systems issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information for the system. These reports may be obtained by writing, calling or 
downloading the reports as follows: 

MERS: MPERS: FRS: 
7937 Office Park Boulevard 7722 Office Park Boulevard, Suite 200. 3100 Brentwood Drive 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70S09 Baton Rouge, LA 70809 Baton Rouge, Louisiana 708(& 
(225) 925-4810 (225) 929-7411 (225) 925-4060 
www.mersla.com www.janqjers.wg www.ffTCt.c<m 

The financial statements of the City of Bogalusa Employees' Retirement System (COBERS) are included in this report. 

In accordance with Govenimcnt Accounting Standards Board (GASH) Statement 68 the City is required to recoil its 
Net Pension Liability in COBERS and the proportional share of each of the other pension plans Net Pension Liability 
and report the following disclosures: 

Plan Descriptions: 

a, City of Bogalusa Employees' Retirement System 

Plan administration. The City of Bogalusa Employees' Retirement System (COBERS) administers the City of 
Bogalusa Pension Plan - a single-employer defmcd benefit pension plan that provides pensions for all permanent 
full-time general and public safety employees of the City. The City's Home Rule Charter grants the authority to 
establish and amend the benefit terms to the COBERS Board of Trustees (COBERS Board). 

Management of the plan is vested in die COBERS Board, which consists of three members - one appointed by the 
Mayor, one appointed by the appointive officers and employees who are members of the system, and one selected 
by the two appointed members. 

Membership: Participation is mandatory for virtually all full-time non-fire and non-police employees who are 
employed on a permanent basis, and are under the age of 60 years on the date of employment. 

-47-



CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Notes to the Primary Goveinineiit Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year &ided December 31,2020 

14. PENSION PLANS ^continued) 

a. City of Boealusa Employees* Retirement System (continued) 

The membership of the plan at June 30,2020 is as follows: 
Retirees & beneficiaries receiving benefits 
Active plan members 

Total 

85 
50 

135 

Description of Benefits: Members become benefit eligible at age 60 with 10 years of service or age 50 with 25 
years of service. The normal benefit is equal to two and two-lhirds percent of average salary for each year of 
total service and any fractional part of a year of service. The minimum amount of benefit is 25% of average 
salary, while maximum benefit is 66 2/3% of average salary. Under die joint and survivor option, 75% of benefits 
are paid and continue to the surviving spouse until death or remarriage. Cost-of-living adjustments (COLA) arc 
provided with approval of the City Council. 

An active member may participate In the Deferred Retirement Option Plan when he becomes eligible to retire. 
Participation in the plan can be for no more dian 36 months. The regular monthly retirement benefit (calculated 
at the time of participation in the program) is deposited in a separate account for the participant. Upon 
termination of employment, the accumulated balance in the account is paid to the participant in a lump sum 
amount or any other method of payment approved by the board of trustees. Payment of the regular monthly 
retirement benefit also commences at the termination of employment. 

Annual Pension Expense and Net Pension Liabilitv: The City's Net Pension Liability to the COBERS, calculated 
in accordance with GASB 67, for the year ended June 30,2020 measurement date is as follows: 

Total pcnsioTi liability: 
Service Cost 
Interest 

Difference betwsen expected and actual experience 
Changes in assiimptions 
Benefit p^onents 

Net change In total pension liability 

Total pension liability - begmning 
Total pension liability- ending 

Plan fiduciary net position: 
Contributions employer 

Contributions employee 

Net investment income 

Benefit payments, refunds and eiqrenses 

Other 
Change in plan fiduciary net position 

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 

Plan fiduciary net position - ending 

Net pension liability - beginning 

Change in net pension liability 

Net pension liability - ending 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 
the total pension liabili^ 

S 385,555 
1,002,661 
(292,625) 

(5,952,127) 

(1,063,390) 

(5,919,926) 
24,842.218 

S 18,922.292 

$ 1,041,061 
134,404 
105,991 

(1,063,390) 
(4,842) 
213,224 

4.293.540 
$ 4,506,764 

S 20,548,678 
(6,133,150) 

$ 14,415,528 

23.82% 
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14. PENSION PLANS (continued) 

a. City of Bogaiusa Employees' Retirement System tcontinuedl 

b. Municipal Employees* Retirement System of Louisiana fMERSl 

The Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS) is the administrator of a cost sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan. The System was originally established by Act 356 of the 1954 regular 
session of the Legislature of the State of Louisiana. The System provides retirement benefits to employees of all 
incorporated villages, towns and cities within the State which do not have their own retirement system and which 
elect to become members of the System. For the year ended June 30, 2020, there were 88 contributing 
municipalities in Plan A and 68 in Plan B. The City of Bogalusa is a participant in Plan A only. 
The following is a description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information purposes only 
and only for Plan A. 

Membership is mandatory as a condition of enploymeit beginning on the date employed if the employee is on a 
permanent basis working at least thirty-five hours per week. Those individuals paid jointly by a participatmg 
employer and the parish are not eligible tor membership in the System with exceptions as outlined in the statutes. 

Any member of Plan A who was hired before January 1, 2013 can retire providing the member meets one of the 
follownng criteria: 
1. Any age with twenty-five (25) or more years of creditable service. 
2. Age 60 with a minimum of ten (10) years of creditable service. 
3. Any age with five (5) years of creditable service eligible for disability benefits. 
4. Survivor's benefits require five (5) or more years creditable service with legal spouse at least last 12months 

before death - 40% at age 60 or minimum of 20% immediately (actuarially calculated). 
5. Any age with 20 years of creditable service, exclusive of military service with an actuarially reduced early 

benefit. 

Eligibility for Retirement for Plan A Tier 2 members hired on or after January 1,2013 is as follows; 
1. Age 67 with seven (7) or more years of creditable service 
2. Age 62 with ten (10) or more years of creditable service 
3. Age 55 with thirty (30) or more years of creditable service 
4. Any age with twenty-five (25) years of creditable service with an actuarially reduced early benefit 
5. Survivor's benefits require five or more years of creditable service with legal spouse at least last 12 months 

before death - 40% at age 60 or minimum of 20% immediately (actuarially calculated). 

Generally, fiie monthly amount of retirement allowance for any member of Plan A Tier 2 shall consist of an amount 
equal to three percent of the member's final average compensation multiplied by his years of creditable service. 
Final average compensation is the average monthly earnings during the highest sixty consecutive months, or joined 
months if service was interrupted. However, under certain conditions as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are 
limited to specified amounts. Any city marshal or deputy city marshal shall receive an additional regular benefit 
computed on supplemental marshal's earnings. 

Upon death of any member of Plan A with five (5) or more years of creditable service, not eligible for retirement, 
the plan provide.s for benefits for the surviving spouse and minor children as outlined in the statutes. 

Any member of Plan A who is eligible for normal retirement at time of death and who leaves a surviving spouse 
will be deemed to have retired and selected Option 2 benefits on behalf of the surviving spouse on the date of 
death. Such benefits will begin only upon proper application and are paid in lieu of any other survivor benefits. 

Any member of Plan A who had not withdrawn their accumulated contributions and had at least twenty 
years of service credit at time of death, surviving spouse shall receive benefits for as long as he/she lives as 
outlined in the statutes. 
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14. PENSION PLANS fcontinucdl 

b. Municipal Emplftvees* Retirement System of Louisiana (MERSl (continued) 

In lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service retirement allowance, any member of Plan A or B 
who is eligible to retire may elect to participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) for up to three 
years and defer the receipt of benefits. During participation in the plan, employer contributions are payable but 
employee contributions cease. The monthly retirement benefits that would be payable, had the person elected to 
cease employment and receive a service retirement allowance, are paid into the DROP Fund. Interest is earned 
when the member has completed DROP participation. Interest eamings are based upon the actual rate of retum 
on the investments identified as DROP funds for the period. In addition, no cost-of-living increases are payable 
to participants until employment which made them eligible to become members of the System has been 
terminated for at least one full year. 

Upon termination of employment prior to or at the end of the specified period of participation, a participant in 
the DROP may receive, at his option, a lump sum from the account equal to the payments into the account, a 
true annuity based upon his account balance in that fund, or any other method of payment if approved by the 
board of trustees. If a participant dies during the participation in the DROP, a lump sum equal to the balance in 
his account shall be paid to his named beneficiary or, if none, to his estate. If employment is not terminated at 
the end of the three years, payments into the DROP fund cease and the person resumes active contributing 
membership in the System. 

For Plan A, a member shall be eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if he has at least five years of 
creditable service, is not eligible for normal retirement, and has been officially certified as disabled by the State 
Medical Disability Board. Upon retirement caused by disability, a member of Plan A shall be paid a disability 
benefit equal to the lesser of forty-five percent of his final average compensation or three percent of his final 
average compensation multiplied by his years of creditable service, whichever is greater, or an amount equal to 
three percent of the member's final average compensation multiplied by his years of creditable service projected 
to his earliest normal retirement age. 

The System is authorized under state law to grant a cost of living increase to members who have been retired for 
at least one year. The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's original benefit for each full calendar year 
since retirement and may only be granted if sufficient funds are available from investment income in excess of 
normal requirements. Stale law allows the System to grant additional cost of living increases to all retirees and 
beneficiaries who arc age sixty-five and above equal to 2% of the benefit being received on October 1, 1977, or 
the original benefit, if retirement commenced after that date. 
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14. PENSION PLANS ^continuedl 

c. Mimicittal Police Etnolovees' Retirement System fMPERS) 

The Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System is the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
plan. Membership in the System is mandatory for any full-time police officer employed by a municipality of the 
State of Louisiana and engaged in law enforcement, empowered to make arrests, provided he or she does not 
have to pay social security and providing he or she meets the statutory criteria. The System provides retirement 
benefits for municipal police officers. The projections of benefit payments in the calculation of the total pension 
liability includes all benefits to be provided to current active and inactive employees through the System in 
accordance with benefit terms and any additional legal agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the 
measurement date. Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by LRS 11:2211 -
11:2233. 

The following is a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information purposes 
only, 

Membership Prior to January 1, 2013: A member is eligible for regular retirement afler he has been a member 
of the System and has 25 years of creditable service at any age or has 20 years of creditable service and is age 
50 or has 12 years' creditable service and is age 55. A member is eligible for early retirement after he has been 
a member of the System for 20 years of creditable service at any age with an actuarially reduced benefit. Benefit 
rates are 3.33% of average final compensation (average monthly earnings during the highest 36 consecutive 
months or joined months if service was interrupted) per number of years of creditable service not to exceed 100% 
of final salary. Upon the death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for 
surviving spouses and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statutes, the benefits range from 
40% to 60% of the member's average final compensation for the surviving spouse. In addition, each child under 
age 18 receives benefits equal to 10% of the member's average final compensation or $200 per month, whichever 
is greater. 

Membership Commencing January 1,2013: Member eligibility for regular retirement, early retirement, disability 
and survivor benefits are based on Hazardous Duty and Non Hazardous Duty sub plans. Under the Hazardous 
Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of the System and has 25 
years of creditable service at any age or has 12 years of creditable service at age 55. Under the Non Hazardous 
Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of the System and has 30 
years of creditable service at any age, 25 years of creditable service at age 55, or 10 years of creditable service 
at age 60. Under both sub plans, a member is eligible for early retirement after he has been a member of the 
System for 20 years of creditable service at any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit from age 55. Under the 
Hazardous and Non Hazardous Duty sub plans, the benefit rates are 3% and 2.50%, respectively, of average final 
compensation (average monthly earnings during the highest 60 consecutive months or joined months if service 
was interrupted) per number of years of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary. Upon death of an 
active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for surviving spouses and minor children. 
Under certain conditions outlined in the statues, the benefits range from 25% to 55% of the member's average 
final compensation for the surviving spouse. In addition, each child under age 18 receives 10% of average fmal 
compensation or $200 per month whichever is greater. If deceased member had less than 10 years of service, 
beneficiary will receive a refund of employee contributions only. 
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14. PENSION FLANS fcontinuedl 

c. Municipal Poiice Employees* Retirement System (MPERSl (continued) 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan: A member is eligible to elect to enter the deferred retirement option plan 
(DROP) when he is eligible for regular retirement based on the members' sub plan participation. Upon filing the 
application for the program, the employee's active membership in the System is terminated. At the entry date 
into the DROP, the employee and employer contributions cease. The amount to be deposited into the DROP 
account is equal to the benefit computed under the retirement plan elected by the participant at date of application. 
The duration of participation in the DROP is thirty-six months or less. If employment is terminated after the 
thrcc-year period, the participant may receive his benefits by lump sum payment or a true annuity. If employment 
is not terminated, active contributing membership into the System shall resume and upon later termination, he 
shall receive additional retirement benefit based on the additional service. For those eligible to enter DROP prior 
to January 1, 2004, DROP accounts shall earn interest subsequent to the termination of DROP participation at a 
rate of half of one percentage point below the percentage rate of return of the System's investment portfolio as 
certified by the actuary on an annual basis but will never lose money. For those eligible to enter DROP 
subsequent to January 1,2004, an irrevocable election is made to earn interest based on the Sj'stem's investment 
portfolio return or a money market investment return. This could result in a negative earnings rate being applied 
to the account. If the memljer elects a money market investment return, the funds are transferred to a government 
money market account. 

Initial Benefit Option Plan in 1999, the Stale Legislature authorized the System to establish an Initial Benefit 
Option program. Initial Benefit Option is available to members who are eligible for regular retirement and have 
not participated in DROP. The Initial Benefit Option program provides both a one-time single sum payment of 
up to 36 months of regular monthly retirement benefit, plus a reduced monthly retirement benefit for life. Interest 
is computed on the balance based on same criteria as DROP. 

d. Firefighters' Retirement System fFRSl 

The Firefighters' Retirement System (FRS) is the administrator of a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined 
benefit pension plan. The System provides retirement, disability, and death benefits for their members. The 
projections of benefit payments in the calculation of the total pension liability includes all benefits to be provided 
to current active and inactive employees through the System in accordance with benefit terms and any additional 
legal agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date. Benefit provisions are authorized 
within Act 434 of 1979 and amended by Louisiana Revised Statutes (R.S.) 11:2251 - 11:2272. The following is 
a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information purposes only. 

Any person who becomes an employee as defined in R.S. 11:2252 on and after January 1, 1980, shall become a 
member as a condition of employment. Membership in the System is a condition of employment for any full-
time firefighters (or any person in a position as defined in the municipal fire and police civil service system) who 
earn at least $375 per month and are employed by any municipality, parish, or fire protection district of die State 
of Louisiana in addition to employees of the Firefighters' Retirement System. 

No person who has attained age 50 or over shall become a member of the System unless the person becomes a 
member by reason of a merger or unless the System received an application for membership before the applicant 
attained the age of 50. No person who has not attained the age of 18 years shall become a member of the System. 
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d. Firefighters* Retirement System fFRS^ (continued) 

Any person who has retired from service imder any retirement system or pension fund maintained basically for 
public officers and employees of the state, its agencies or political subdivisions, and who is receiving retirement 
benefits therefrom may become a member of this System, provided the person meets all other reqtiirements for 
membership. Service credit from the retirement system or pension plan from which the member is retired shall 
not be used for reciprocal recognition of service with this System, or for any other purpose in order to attain 
eligibility or increase the amount of service credit in this System. 

Employees with 20 or more years of service who have attained age 50, or employees who have 12 years of 
service who have attained age 55, or 25 years of service at any age are entitled to annual pension benefits equal 
to 3.333% of their average final compensation based on the 36 consecutive months of highest pay multiplied by 
their total years of service, not to exceed 100%. Employees may elect to receive their pension benefits in the 
form of a joint and survivor annuity. If employees terminate before rendering 12 years of service, they forfeit 
the right to receive the portion of their accumulated plan benefits attributable to their employer's contributions. 
Benefits are payable over the employees' lives in the form of a monthly annuity. An employee may elect an 
unreduced benefit or any of seven options at retirement. See RS. 11 :2256(A) for additional details on retirement 
benefits. 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan: After completing 20 years of creditable service and attaining the age of 50 
years, or 25 years at any age, a member may elect to participate in the defmed retirement option plan (DROP) 
for up to 36 months. Upon commencement of participation in DROP, employer and employee contributions to 
the System cease. The monthly retirement benefit that would have been payable is paid into the member's DROP 
account, Upon termination of employment, a participant in the program has several options to receive their 
DROP benefit. A member may (1) elect to roll over all or a portion of their DROP balance into another eligible 
qualified plan, (2) receive a lump-sum payment fix)m the account, (3) receive single withdrawals at the discretion 
of the member, (4) receive monthly or annual withdrawals, or (5) receive an annuity based on the DROP account 
balance. These withdrawals are in addition to his regular monthly benefit. If employment is not terminated at the 
end of the 36 months, the participant resumes regular contributions to the System. No withdrawals may be made 
from the DROP account until the participant retires. 

Initial Benefit Option Plan: Effective June 16, 1999, members eligible to retire and who do not choose to 
participate in DROP may elect to receive, at the time of retirement, an initial benefit option (IBO) in an amount 
up to 36 months of benefits, with an actuarial reduction of their future benefits. Such amounts may be withdrawn 
or remain in the IBO account eaming interest at the same rate as the DROP account. 

Funding Policy - All Pension Plans 

The funding policy for the City of Bogalusa Employees' Retirement System (COBERS) is actuarially determined 
and adopted by Board of Trustees as established by the City of Bogalusa's Home Rule Charter. The City also collects 
an ad valorem tax of 2.75 mills that is contributed to COBERS that is in addition to the City's contribution based on 
a covered payroll percentage. On the statewide multiple employer cost sharing pension plans. Article X, Section 
29(E)(2)(a) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the Legislature the authority to determine employee 
contributions. Employer contributions are actuarially determined using statutorily established methods on an annual 
basis and arc constitutionally required to cover the employer's portion of the normal cost and provide for the 
amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Employer contributions are adopted by the Legislature annually upon 
recommendation of the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee (PRSAC). 
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14. PENSION PLANS (continued! 

Funding Policy - All Pension Plans (continued) 

Contributions to the plans are required and determined by CODERS or by State statute (which may be amended) and 
are expressed as a percentage of covered payroll. The contribution rates in effect for the year ended June 30, 2020, 
for the City and covered employees were as follows; 

City Employees 

City of Bogalusa Employees'Retirement System' 11.00% 6.00% 
Municipal Employees'Retirement System Plan A 29.50% 10.00% 
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

All employees hired prior to 01/01/2013 and all 
Hazardous Duty enqjloyees hired after 01/01/2013 33.75% 10.00% 

Non-Hazardous E)uty (hiredafter 01/01/2013) 33.75% 8.00% 
Employees receiving compensation below poverty 

guidelines of US Department of Health 36.25% 7.50% 
Firefighters' Retirement System 

Employees receiving compensation above poverty 
guidelines ofUS Department of Health 32.25% 10.00% 

Employees receiving compensation below poverty 
guidelines of US Department of Health 34.25% 8.00% 

' Percentage does not include City contnlmliDn of property taxes dedicated to the Retirement System 

The contributions made to the Systems for the past three years ending on December 31, were as follows: 
2020 2019 2018 

City of Bogalusa Employees'Retirement System ^ $ 3,234,292 S 1,023,182 $ 441,186 
Municipal Employees'Retirement System Plan A 22,267 20,467 18,972 
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 674,058 606,288 594,793 
Firefighters'Retirement System 352,316 335,756 328,753 

^ Amount inchides the City's accrual of property and sales tai^s dedicated to the Retiieinent System 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resource 
Related to Pensions 

The following schedule lists the City's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability allocated by each of the 
CODERS plan and the cost sharing multiple-employer pension plans based on the June 30,2020 measurement date. 
The City uses this measurement to record its Net Pension Liability and associated amounts as of June 30, 2020 in 
accordance with GASB Statement 68, The schedule also includes the proportionate share allocation rate used at June 
30,2020 along with the change compared to the June 30,2020 rate. The City's proportion of the Net Pension Liability 
was based on a projection of the Agency's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. 
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Pensioo Liabiliti^ Pensloo Expeose> and Deferred Outflows of Resources aod Deferred inflows of R^ources 
Related to Pensions (continued) 

Increase 
Net Pension Proportionate (Decrease) to 

Liability at June Rate at June Jvine30,2019 
30,2020 30,2020 Rate 

City of Bogalusa Employees' Retirement System 

Multiple Employer Cost Sharing Plans: 
Municipal Employees' Retirement System Plan A 
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
Firefighters' Retirement System 

Total - Multiple Employer Cost Sharing Plans: 

$ 14,415,528 Not Applicable Noti^licable 

173,944 
5,773,924 
3,341,471 
9,289.339 

$ 23.704,867 

0.0402% 
0.6247% 
0.4821% 

-0.0005% 
0.0149% 
-0.0354% 

The following schedule lists each pension plan's recognized pension expense of die City for the year ended 
December 31, 2020: 

Total 

City of Bogalusa Employees' Retirement System 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System Plan A 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

Firefighters' Retirement System 

S (2,054,117) 
25,873 

903,626 
460.997 

$ (663.621) 

At December 31,2020, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

DiffeFences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual eamiu^ on pcnskm plan 
investments 
Changs in proportion and differences between Empbyer contributions 
and proportionate share of contributions (cost sharing plans only) 
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 

Total 

461,040 
463,143 

1,078,037 

140,771 
3,361.614 

$ (637,285) 
(5,211,866) 

(78,845) 

(499,814) 

S 5,504,605 S (6,427,810) 
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions (continued) 

Summary totals of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources by pension plan: 
Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

City of Bo^lusa Employees' Retirement System 
Municipal Employees' Retirement System Plan A 
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
Firefighters' Retirement System 

S 3,271,453 $ (5,343,302) 
32,205 (2,615) 

1,277,493 (381,192) 
923,454 (700,700 

$ 5,504,605 $(6,427,810) 

The following table lists the City's contributions to each retirement system that is reported as deferred outflow of 
resources related to pension made subsequent to the measurement period of Jime 30,2020 which will be recognized 
as a reduction in Net Pension Liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. The following schedule list the pension 
contributions made subsequent to the measurement period for each pension plan; 

Subsequent 
Contributions 

City of Bogalusa Employees' Retirement System $ 2,810,494 
Municipal Employees' Retirement System Plan A 11,559 
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 350,160 
Firefighters' Retirement System 189,401 

$ 3,361,614 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will 
be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year COBERS MERS MPERS FRSL Total 
2021 $ (2,797,337) S 6,736 $ 53,539 $ (64,950) $ (2,802,012) 
2022 (2,108,659) 4,807 201,160 49,346 (1,853,346) 
2023 (11,661) 3,944 159,891 80,080 232,254 
2024 35,314 2,544 131,551 11,019 180,428 
2025 - - - (21,386) (21,386) 
2026 : : : (20,757) (20,757) 

% (4,882,343) $ 18.031 $ 546,141 & 33,352 $ (4,284,819) 

Payables to the Pension Plan 

The City recorded accrued liabilities to each of the Retirement Systems for the year ended December 31,2020 mainly 
due to the accrual for payroll at the end of each of the fiscal years. The amounts due are included in liabilities under 
the amounts reported as accounts, salaries and other payables. The balance due to each for the retirement systems at 
December 31, 2020 is as follows: 

December _3 i, 2020 
COBERS $ 235,522 
MERS 
MPERS 
FRSL 

235,522 
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Actuarial Assumptions 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability for each pension 
plan as of June 30, 2020 are as follows: 

COBERS MPEKS 

Valuatiaa Date 

Actuarial Cost Method 

ActuariaJ Assumptions: 

Expected Retniiniog 

Service Lives 

investmeot Rate 
of Return 

Inflation Rate 

Mortality 

Salary Increases 

Cost of Uvlog 
Adjustment! 

June 3ft, 2020 

Entry Age NorrDal Cost 

3 years 

6.50% net of investmenl expenses (increased 
from prior year 4.06%) 

3.500% 

For pre-retirement and post-retiremeul 
mortality, the rates of the PubG-2010 ( 
hcadccunt weighted below median) tables were 
used. The mortalhy assumptions for all 
partic^ants are sex distinct with mortality 
improvement projected generBtionaily using 
scale MP-2020 and a base year of 2010. 

It has been assumed that employees' 
eompensatbn will increase with each year of 
employment with annual salary increases 
average 4.5% per year of employmcnl and with 
aggregate payroll increases on the avaagc 
2.5% per year. 

A cQsl-of-iiving adjustment not to exceed 2% 
of the base benefa may be paid to all retirees 
and beneiiciaTies who are age 65 or more. If 
given, such raises are tn be funded from 
deemed "excess" investment earnings over 
6.50%. The raises must be approved by the 
City Council and arc allowed on July 1, 1982 
and every subsequent July i. 

June 30, 2020 
Entry Age Normal Cost 

3 years 

6.95% net of investmeot expeoses (decreased 
From prior year 7.00%) 

2.500% 

PubG-20l0(B) Healthy Rellree Table set equal 
to 120% for males and females, edchaiLjustEd 
using their respective male and female MP20I8 
scales, 
FubG-2010(B) Employee Table set equal to 
120% for males and females, each adjusted 
using their respective male and female MF20I8 
scales. 
PubNS-2010(B) Disabled Retiree Tabb set 
equal to 120% for males and females with the 
full generational MP20i8 scale. 

June 30. 2020 

Entry Age Normal Cost 

4 years 

6.95% net of investment expenses (decreased 
from prior year of 7.125%) 

2.500% 

For annuitants and beneficBries, the Pub-2010 
Public Retirement Plan Mortality Table for 
Safety Below-Median Heatthy Retires 
multipiied by 115% for males atid 125% for 
females, each with full generational projection 
using the MP2019 sale was used. For disabled 
lives, the Pub-2010 Publie Retirement Plans 
Mortality Table for Safety Disable Retirees 
multiplied by 105% for males and 115% for 
females, each with full generational projection 
using the MP20i9 scale was used. For 
employees, the Pub-2010 Publie Retirement 
Flans Mortality Table for Safety Below-Median 
Hmpbyees multiplied by 115% for males and 
125% for females, each whb full generatinnDl 
projection using the MP2019 scale was used. 

June 30, 2020 
Entry Age Normal Cost 

Yean of Service Yean of Service 

7 years 

7.00% net of fees (decrease from prior year of 
7.15%) 

2.500% per annum 

The mortality rate assumptions were updated m 
fiscal year 2020 to reflect changes from the 
recent experience study and rates set in the Pub-
2010 Public Retirement Plans mortality tables, 
as compared to the RP-2000 Combined Healthy 
and Disabled Lives tables that were used for the 
previous valuation. For the June 30. 2020 
vahiation, a.ssumptians for mortality rates were 
based on the foUowing; For active members, 
mortality was set equal to the Pub-2010 Public 
ReiircmenI Plans Morlalily Tabic for Sal'ety 
Bclow-Mcdian Employees. For armuitants and 
beneficiaries, mortality was set equal to the Pub-
2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table 
for .Safety Bebw-Median JfcaHhy Retirees. For 
disabled retirees, mortality was set equal to the 
Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality 
Table for Safety Disabled Retirees. In oil cases 
the base table was multiplied by 105% for 
males and 115% for females, each with full 
generational projectbn using the appropriate 
MP20)9 scale. 

14.10% in the first two years of service and 
5.20% with 3 or more years of service; 
includes Inflatbn and merit increases (in 2019, 
.salary increases ranged from 14.75% in the 
first two years of servbe to 4.50% with 25 or 
more years ofacrvbc). 

1 - 4 - 6,4%-Pian A and 7.4%-PIan B 

4 & Over - 4.5%-Plan Aand 4.9%-Plan B 

The System is authorized under state law to 
grant a cost of living increase to members who 
have been retired for at least one year. The 
adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's 
original bcncfti for each full calendar year since 
retirement and may only be granted if sulTiclent 
funds are available from hvesCment irKome in 
excess of normal requiremenls. State law 
aUow! the System to grant additional cost of 
living increases to all retirees and benertcmics 
who are age sixty-live and above equal to 2% 
of the benefit being received on October 1, 
i 977, or the original benefit, if retirement 
commenced after that dale. 

i - 2 - 12.30% 

Above 2 - 4.70% 
The present value nf future retirement benefits 
is based on benefits currently being paid by the 
System and includes previously granted cost-of-
living incicascs. The present values do not 
include provisions for potential future increases 
not yet authorized by the Board nf Trustees. 

For the purpose of determiiing the present 
vahie of benefits, CX)LAs were deemed not to 
be substenlivciy automatic and only those 
previously granted were included. 
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14. PENSION PLANS fcontinuedl 

The following schedule list the methods used by each of the retirement systems in determining the long term rate of 
return on pension plan investments; 

COBERS MERS 
The long-teim expecied rale of return on investmetits 
waa delermiied ushj; a buiUiag-bkick method n 
which besL-eslimale ranges of expected future real 
rales of return (net of Investment expense and 
inllaLxin) arc developed lor each aaaci aDncalion. 
These rales arc combined lo produce the long-term 
expected rule of reliim try weighting ibe expected 
future real rates of rcUim by the target asset 
allocation percentage and by adding expected 
infbtkm. The average invested assets In each asset 
aDocadon for the current fecal year E presented in 
the chart below. The decouni rate was cafculated at 
6.5% 

The long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan 
mveatmeols was determined using a tniikling-bkjck 
method in which hest-eatimates ranges of expected 
future real rates of return (expecied rettnis, net of 
pension plan investment expeitae and Ttflatkm] are 
develcped for each major asset class. These tanges 
are combined lo produce the long-lenn expecied rate 
of retvni by weighting the expected future real rates 
of return by the target asset aDocation percentage and 
by addiig expecied inflaUon of and an adjustment for 
the efTect of betanciig or diversification. 

MPER5 
The forecasled long-lenn expected rate of return on 
ponskn plan investments was delecmined using a 
bu3dlng-bbck melhod in which best-esdmates ranges 
of expecied future real rates of retum (expected 
retunu, net of pension plan investment expense and 
tnibbon) are devebped fbr each major asset class. 
Ibese ranges are combhed to produce the bng-tcrm 
expected rate of retim by weighting the expecied 
hrttue real rate.s nf retum by the target asset 
aDocatirm percentage and by adding expecud inilslkm 
and an adjusUnenI for the effeel of 
rebalancing/dlversirication. The resulting furecasled 
long term rate of rvtum B 6.95% for the year ended 
June 30,2020, 

FRSL 
The estinated bng-term expected rate of reUm cn pension plan investments was 
detetmined by the System's actuary usiug the System's target asset aDocation and 
the GS. Curran At Company Ccosultant Average stutiy fbr 2020. The consulcanis' 
average study inchided prqecled nominal rales of relum, staidard devialiong of 
returns, and coTrelalions of returns for a list of crunmon asset ctasses eoDeeted from 
a number of tnvcsuncnt consultants and invesuncnL menagemBUt faiiiB. Each 
consultant's rcspanse bieludcd norrunal ttxpectcd bng term rales uf retum. In order 
to arrive at bng term expected arithmetic real rates uf return, the actuary noTmalized 
the data received fhrm the consultant's responses in the foDowing ways. Where 
nominal rvluma received were arTthmettc. the actuary snrpjy redtieed the retum 
aaaun^ion by (he long term iiflation assunvlion. Where nonunal reUims were 
geometric, the actuary converted Ihe return to arithiTWIic by adjusting for the bng 
term standard develion and then reduced (he essungition by the bng term inflation 
assuniptlon Usbg (he target asset aDocation for the System and the average values 
for expecied real rates of retum, standard deviation of returns, and cotrebHon of 
returns, an arithmetb expected nominal rate of retum and standard devialian for ihe 
porlfbtb was determined. The System's long-term assumed rate of inflation of 
2 50% was used in (hs process for (he fi&cel year ended June 311,2020. 
The bng-tcim expecied real rate of return is an imporUnl input into the actuary's 
dctcrrribatiun of the reuaonable range fur the dtscutml rate which is used in 
dctermiting the total pension liability. Prior year's fmBneiil reports presented the inig 
term etqteeted real rale of retum provided by Ihe System's investment consuUitnt, 
whereas ths year's report presenta this ntformation for both fecal years 2020 and 
2019 from the System's actuary. The actuary's malhod hcoiporeles nfbimalbn 
from multiple consultants and htvesmenta ftnns regardfig fuhre expecied rates of 
return, variances, ami cccieblioi coefftcjenls fbr each asset cbss. The actuary's 
melhod integrates data from rruitupla sources lo produce evera^ values thereby 
reducing reliance on a singb riaUi suurce. 
Best eslimales of arithmetic real rales of retum lor each major cbss ineluded in the 
System's Laiget asset albcatbn as of June 30, 2020 arc sumnuirucd FJfS' target 
asset albcatbn as of June 30. 2020 

The following table provides a summary of the best estimates of arithmetic/geometric real rates of retum for each 
major asset class included in each of the Retirement Systems target asset allocations as of June 30, 2020; 

Asset Class 

Target ADocatkm Long-Temi Expected Real Rate of Retum 

COBERS MERS MPERS FRSL COBERS MERS MPERS FRSL 
Public equity 

Equity 

Public fixed income 

Fixed Income 

Alternatives 

International equity 

International rixed income 
Other 

Total 

Inflation 

Expected Arithmetic Nominal Retum 

50.00% 

35.00% 

10.00% 

5.00% 

53.00% 

38.00% 

9.00% 

48.50% 54.00% 

33.50% 31.00% 

18.00% 15.00% 

6.840% 

1.710% 

6.490% 

2.890% 

2.33% 

1.67% 

0.40% 

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100,00% 

3.08% 26,80% 

0.54% 4.40% 

1.02% 14,49% 

8.44% 

4.40% 4.64% 

2.60% 2,55% 

7.00% 7.19% 
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14. PENSION PLANS (continued) 

Discount Rate 

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be 
made at the current contribution rate and that sponsor contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference 
between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, each of the 
pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to 
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The discount rate used to measure 
the total pension liability for CODERS, MERS, MPERS and FRSL was 6.500%, 6.950%, 6.950%, and 7.000% for 
the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following table presents the City's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability (NPL) using the discount rate 
of each Retirement System as well as what the City's proportionate share of the NPL would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is one perccntagc-point lower or one percentage-point higher than the current rate used by 
each of the Retirement Systems: 

1.0% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.0% Increase 
COBERS 

Rates 5.500% 6.500% 7.500% 
City of Bogalusa Share of NPL $ 16,356,934 $ 14,415,528 S 12,790,664 

MERS 
Rates 5.950% 6.950% 7.950% 
City of Bogalusa Share of NPL $ 226,282 $ 173,944 S 129,690 

MPERS 
Rales 5.950% 6.950% 7.950% 
City of Bogalusa of NPL $ 8,111,748 $ 5,773,924 $ 3,819,600 

FRSL 
Rates 6.000% 7.00% 8.000% 
City of Bogalusa Share of NPL $ 4,826,722 $ 3,341,471 S 2,101,725 

15. RISK MANAGEMENT 

Litigation and General LiabiUtv 

The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; thefl of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City attempts to minimize risk from significant losses 
by participating in a public entity risk pool, According to the participation contract, the City transfers all risk to the 
public entity risk pool. The City is only responsible for the payment of premiums and deductibles on claims; the 
public entity risk pool is responsible for the payment of claims excluding the deductible. 
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15. RISK MANAGEMENT (•continued) 

Litigation and General Liabilitv (continued) 

On December 31, 2020, the City was a defendant in a number of lawsuits and other claims arising from the normal 
course of operations; most of which were being defended through the City's participation on the public entity risk 
pool. However, some of the claims were not covered through the risk pool and were thus handled through other hired 
counsel. The City Attorney has advised that his position on the suits covered under insurance is that they should be 
defended and/or settled within the policy limits. The lawsuits and claims not covered by insurance are also being 
vigorously defended, The ultimate disposition of all of these matters is unknown as of the date of issuance of these 
fmaneial statements; however, certain of these matters could materially affect the City's financial condition if rulings 
are made in favor of the plaintiff or if the City chooses to settle these matters. 

Worker's Compensation 

In prior years, the City had a self-insured retention (deductible) of $175,000 for worker's compensation. In 2009, the 
city purchased a full coverage worker's compensation insurance policy. No deductible is required; therefore, no 
reserve liability exists for claims incurred from 2009 forward. There is also no liability recorded in the Governmental 
Activities long-term debt for the City's retained risk pertaining to claims incurred prior to 2009 as of December 31, 
2020, as there are no open claims that require a reserve liability. 

Past Due Amounts 

The City was in arrears to the public entity risk pool in which it participates for premiums due and amounts owed for 
past self-insured worker's compensation claims. The total amount owed to the risk pool entity was approximately 
$373,000 at December 31, 2020. These amounts owed are included in accounts payable of the General Fund. 

16- GRANTS FRQIVI OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS 

Federal and state governmental units provide an important source of supplementary funding used to finance 
employment, construction programs, and other activities beneficial to the community. This funding, primarily in the 
form of grants, is recorded throughout all of the City's fund types. A grant receivable is recorded when the City has 
a right to reimbursement under the related grant, which is generally at the time an eligible expenditure has been 
incurred. 

Most grants received by the City specify the purpose for which the grant monies are to be used and are subject to 
audit by the granting agency or, in the case of federal grants, the Single Audit Act. These audits may result in 
disallowed cost on previously received reimbursements requiring the City to return the funds to the grantor. Any 
potential return of funds is accounted for in accordance with FASB Statement No 5, Accounting for Contingencies, 
as made applicable under GASB Statement 62. 
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16. GRANTS FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS (continued) 

Grants wd contribution revenues are to be categorized between operating and capital. The following categorization 
supports the grants and contribution revenues reported in the Statement of Activities: 

Function/? roeram 

Governmental Activities: 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Airport 

Operating Capital Total 

$ 49,641 $ - $ 49,641 
3,396,813 - 3,396,813 

998,115 998,115 
172,943 176,613 349,556 

$ 3.619.397 $ 1.174,728 $4,794,125 

17. LEASES OF CITY PROPERTY 

The City of Bogalusa has operating leases for various buildings, land and improvements. The lease's teims range 

from five years to fifteen years. Operating lease income forDet^mber 31,2020 was $392,971. The following is a 
sdiedule of future minimum lease commitment: 

Year 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

Amount 
269,346 
147,600 
70,600 
33,000 

520,546 

18. COMPENSATION PAID TO CITY COUNCIL 

Name Title Amount 
Judson Teddy Dnimmond City Council - At Lar^ $ 7,223 
Penny Douglas City Council - At Large 7,200 
Gloria Kates City Council - Detrict A 7,200 
DanieUe Magee-Keys City Council - District B 7,200 
Oneita Graham City Council - District C 7,200 
Dorman K Kellis City Council - District D 7,200 
Marcus Irvine City Council - District E 7.777 

S 51,000 
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19. OPERATING ENVIRONMENT AND FINANCIAL DEFICIENCIES 

In February 2019, the Louisiana Fiscal Review Committee voted to place the City under fiscal administration in 
accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1351. The Louisiana fiscal Review Committee is composed of the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor, the Attorney General, and the Treasurer. The decision to place the City under Fiscal 
Administration was due to the City's continued struggling financial situation particularly with the funding of the City 
of Bogalusa's Employees Retirement System and the ability to repay the liability due to the Choctaw Landfill Joint 
Venture. In May 2019, the Court appointed the City's fiscal administrator who was recommended by the Louisiana 
Legislative Auditor and Attorney General. The fisc^ administrator will have broad authority over the City's finances 
and will investigate the fmancial situation of the City and report recommendations for changes to the Court, State 
Treasurer, Attorney General and the Legislative Auditor. The objective of the fiscal administration process is to 
make operational changes so that long term fiscal stability can be achieved. The fiscal administration appointment 
continued during 2020. 

20. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Plan Description 

The City of Bogalusa (the City) provides certain continuing health care and life insurance benefits for its retired 
employees. The City of Bogalusa's OPEB Plan (the OPEB Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan 
administered by the City. The authority to establish and/or amend the obligation of the employer, employees and 
retirees rests with the City. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 75. 

Benefits Provided 

Medical and life insurance benefits are provided through comprehensive plans and are made available to employees 
upon actual retirement. Employees retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows: The employees 
are covered by a retirement system whose retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows: 25 years 
of service at any age; or, age 60 and 10 years of service. 

Life insurance coverage is provided to retirees and 100% of the rate (active and retired) is paid by the employer for 
the insurance amount of $2,500. Insurance coverage while active is continued after retirement. 

Employees covered by benefit terms 

The December 31, 2020 total OPEB liability was determined using the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation that 
included the following employees covered by the benefit terms; 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 119 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 
Active employees 135 

254 

Total OPEB Liability 

The City's total OPEB liability of $402,232 was measured as of December 31, 2020 and was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of that date. 
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20. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS ^continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions and other inputs 

The total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 2.0% 
Salary increases 3.0%, including inflation 

Discount rate 2.74% annually (Beginning of Year to Determine ADC) 
2.12%, aimually (As of End of Year Measurement Date) 

Healthcare cost trend rates 5.5% annually until year 2030, then 4.5% 
Mortality SOA RP-2014 Table 

The discotmt rate was based on the Bond Buyers' 20 Y ear General Obligation municipal bond index as of December 
31,2020, the end of the applicable measurement period. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31,2020 valuation were based on the results of ongoing evaluations 
of the assumptions ^m January 1,2009 to December 31,2020. 

Change.^ in the Total OPEB Liability 

Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 440,523 

Changes for the year: 

Service cost 5,188 

Interest 12,141 

Differences between expected and actual experience (61,062) 

Changes in assumptions 19,953 

Benefit Payments and Net Transfers (14,511) 

Net changes (38,291) 

Balance at December 31,2020 $ 402,232 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate - The following presents the total OPEB liability 
of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 
1-percentage-point lower (1.12%) or 1-percentage-point higher (3.12%) than the current discount rate: 

1.0% Decrease Current Discount 1.0% Increase 
(1.12%) Rate (2.12%) (3.12%) 

Total OPEB liability $ 469,672 $ 402,232 $ 349,006 
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20. OTHER POST-EMPLOVMENT BENEFITS tcontinuedl 

Changes in the Total 0?EB Liability (continued) 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates - The following presents the total 
OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using 
healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (4.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher (6.5%) than the 
current healthcare trend rates: 

1.0% Decrease Current Trend Rate 1.0% Increase 
(4.5%) (5.5%) (6.5%) 

Total OPEB liability S 393,431 $ 402,232 $ 412,373 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

For the year ended December 31,2020, the City recognized OPEB expense of $15,428. At December 31,2020, the 
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following 
sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 

Total 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be 
recognized in OPEB expense as follows; 

Years ending December 31: 
2021 $ (1,901) 
2022 (1,901) 
2023 (1,901) 
2024 8,376 
2025 8,376 
Thereafter 8,376 

$ 19,425 

$ 28,785 $ (50,676) 
58,745 (17,429) 

$ 87,530 (68,105) 
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21. TAX ABATEMENTS 

The City of Bogalusa is subject to certain property tax abatements granted by the Louisiana State Board of Commerce 
and Industry (the "State Board"), a state entity govemed by board members representing major economic groups and 
gubernatorial appointees. Abatements to which the government may be subject include those issued for property 
taxes under the Industrial Tax Exemption Program ("ITEP") and the Restoration Tax Abatement Program ("RTAP"). 
In addition, the City of Bogalusa has the authority to grant sales tax rebates to taxpayers pursuant to the Enterprise 
Zone Tax Rebate Program ("EZ Program"). For the year ending December 31, 2020, the City of Bogalusa only 
participated in the Industrial Tax Exemption Program. 

Under the ITEP, as authorized by Article 7, Section 21 (F) of the Louisiana Constitution and Executive Order Number 
JBE 2016-73, companies that qualify as manufacturers can apply to the State Board for a property tax exemption on 
all new property, as defined, used in the manufacturing process. Under the ITEP, companies are required to promise 
to expand or build manufacturing facilities in Louisiana, with a minimum investment of $5 million. The exemptions 
are granted for a 5-year term and are renewable for an additional 5-year term upon approval by the State Board. In 
the case of the local government, these state-granted abatements have resulted in reductions of property taxes, which 
the tax assessor administers as a temporary reduction in the assessed value of the property involved. The abatement 
agreements stipulate a percentage reduction of property taxes, which can be as much as 100 percent. The local 
government may recapture abated taxes if a company fails to expand facilities or otherwise fail to fulfill its 
commitments under the agreement. 

Taxes abated for the fiscal year ended December 31,2020 were as follows: 

Amount of Taxes 
Abated During the 

Fiscal Year 
Tax Abatement/Refund Program 
Industrial tax Exemption Program $ 1,144,130 

The following schedule identifies the abated taxes by fund; 

Govemmental Funds: 
General Fund $ 742,976 
Non-major govemmental funds 328,727 

Proprietary Funds: 
Utility System 72,427 

$ 1,144,130 
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22. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

In 2013, the City entered into an agreement with the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality for asbestos 
remediation for past, present and future demolitions of condemned\adjudicated properties in possession of the City. 
The City has committed to and has begun remediation of 140 demolitions from the past that were identified by the 
DEQ upon inspection. The City has completed remediation on a total of 52 properties through 12/31/2020 leaving a 
balance of 88 to complete. Two properties were completed during the 12/31/2020 fiscal year. In accordance with 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No 49, Accounting and financial reporting for Pollution 
Remediation Liabilities, an estimated liability of $386,000 is recorded as payable for the past demolitions, for which 
remediation activities have already begun. Future demolitions are not estimable at this time. 

In March, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a novel coronavirus (CO VID-19) as a global 
pandemic, which continues to spread throughout the United States. The COVID-19 pandemic has negatively 
impacted the global economy and created significant volatility and disruption of financial markets. The extent of the 
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the City's operational and financial performance will depend on certain 
developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak and the impact on the City, vendors and employees, 
all of which arc uncertain and cannot be predicted. The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic may directly or 
indirectly impact the City's financial condition or results of operations carmot be reasonably estimated at this time. 

23. CURRENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS SCHEDULED TO BE IMPLEMENTED 

The Govcmmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates 
of Certain Authoritative Guidance. Statement 95 changed the effective dates for accounting pronouncements 
scheduled to be implemented by the City. Following arc recently issued pronouncements with the updated effective 
dates as changed by GASB 95 that may have to be reported in the City's financial statements in subsequent years: 

GASB Statement 87. Leases-. This standard will require all leases to be reported on the statement of net position 
under a single accounting model for both lessors and lessees. The statement will require the recognition of lease 
assets or liabilities for leases previously reported as operating leases. Both operating and capital leases will be 
reported under this single accounting method and reported by lessees as an intangible right to use asset and by lessors 
as a receivable with both reporting a deferred inflow of resources. The standard is effective for annual reporting 
periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The City will include the requirements of this standard, as applicable, in its 
December 31, 2022 financial statement. All of the City's lease agreements will need to be evaluated to determine 
the impact of implementing this standard; however, the effect of this standard or its applicability to the City arc 
unknown at this time, 

24. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

In March 2021, the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) was passed by the US Congress and signed by the President 
of the United States. ARPA includes an allocation of $195.3 billion in Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery 
Funds (CSLFRF). Of the $193.3 billion, a sub allocation was made to designate $19.5 billion to non-entitlement 
units of local govemment - meaning populations of less than 50,000. The City of Bogalusa received an allocation 
of $4,254,782 of which $2,127,391 was received in June 2021 as the first payment with the remaining $2,127,391 
scheduled to be received in June 2022. The City is required to use these funds in accordance with ARPA or will be 
required to return the funds to the Unites States Treasury. 

As described in Note 19, the City was appointed a fiscal administrator in accordance with R.S. 39:1351 for the 
purpose of making operational changes to achieve long term fiscal stability for the City. The fiscal administrator 
appointment concluded in August 2021. 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES TN TOTAL OTHER 
POST-EMPLOYME1ST BENEFIT LIABHTTV AND RELATED RATIOS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 ̂  2020 

Financial 
statement Measurement 

reporting date date Service cost 

Difference 
between actual Changes of 
and expected assumptions or Benefit 

Interest experience other inputs payments 

Net change in Total OPEB Total OPEB Covered 
total OPEB liability • liability - employee 

liabiHty beginninR encfing payroll 

total UPta 
liability as a 

percentage of 
covered employee 

payroll 

12/31/2020 12/31/2020 S 5,188 $ 12,141 $ (61,062) $ 19,953 $ (14,511) S (38,291) $ 440,523 $ 402,232 $ 4,258,351 9.45% 
12/31/2019 12/31/2019 2,670 14,192 38,380 58,373 (17,896) 95,719 344,804 440,523 4,814,155 9.15% 
12/31/2018 12/31/2018 3,251 12,599 (7,319) (26,143) (2,199) (19,811) 364,615 344,804 4,673,937 7.38% 

TTtis schedule is intended to show information for lOyears. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria of paragraph 4 of GASB 75 for this OPEB plan. 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

Cost Sharing Plans Only 
For the Year Ended December 31,2020 (*) 

Year Pension Plan 

Employer's 
Proportion of the Net 

Pension Liability 
(Asset) 

Employer's 
Proportionate Share 
of the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) 

Employer's 
Covered Payroll 

Employer's 
Proportionate Share of 

the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) as a 

Percentage of its 
Covered Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary Net 
Position as a 

Percentage of the 
Total Pension 

Liability 

2020 MERS (Plan A) 0.0402% $ 173,944 $ 76,898 226.2009% 64.5220% 
2019 MERS (Plan A) 0.0408% 170,408 75,493 225.7269% 64.6752% 
2018 MERS (Plan A) 0.0404% 167,859 74,013 226.7966% 63.9406% 
2017 MERS (Plan A) 0.0415% 173,533 74,246 233.7271% 62.4940% 
2016 MERS (Plan A) 0.0386% 158,091 48,131 328.4598% 62.1103% 
2015 MERS (Plan A) 0.0334% 119,146 56,906 209.3734% 66.1790% 
2014 MERS (Plan A) 0.0324% 83,125 62,719 132.5356% 73.9900% 

2020 MPERS 0.6247% $ 5,773,924 $ 1,929,606 299.2281% 70.9450% 
2019 MPERS 0.6098% 5,538,314 1,900,055 291.4818% 71.0078% 
2018 MPERS 0.6121% 5,175,137 1,807,951 286.2432% 71.8871% 
2017 MPERS 0.6094% 5,320,084 1,803,009 295.0670% 70.0815% 
2016 MPERS 0.6381% 5,980,832 1,786,352 334.8070% 66.0422% 
2015 MPERS 0.7028% 5,505,641 1,727,198 318.7614% 70.7300% 
2014 MPERS 0.7744% 4,844,528 1,863,353 259.9898% 75.1010% 

2020 FRSL 0.4821% $ 3,341,471 $ 1,200,158 278.4193% 72.6117% 
2019 FRSL 0.5174% 3,240,332 1,249,036 259.4266% 73.9643% 
2018 FRSL 0.5314% 3,056,372 1,270,215 240.6185% 74.7634% 
2017 FRSL 0.5820% 3,336,005 1,368,523 243.7668% 73.5479% 
2016 FRSL 0.5631% 3,682,876 1,269,799 290.0361% 68.1550% 
2015 FRSL 0.6181% 3,335,696 1,212,206 275.1757% 72.4480% 
2014 FRSL 0.6475% 2,881,461 1,412,941 203.9336% 76.0150% 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

(*) The amounts presented have a measurement date of June 30th for the year identified. 

The three Retirement Systems reported in this schedule are as follows: 

Multiple Employer Cost Sharing Pension Plans: 
MERS (Plan A) = Municipal Employees' Retirement System 
MPERS = Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
FRSL = Firefighters Retirement System of Louisiana 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Contributions to Each Retirement System 

Cost Sharing Plans Only 
For the Year Ended December 31,2020 

Contractually 
Required 

Contributions in 
Relation to 

Contractually Required 
Contribution 
Deficiency Employer's 

Contributions as 
a % of Covered 

Year Pension Plan: Contribution^ Contribution^ (Excess) Covered Payrolf Payroll 

2020 MERS (Plan A) $ 22,267 $ 22,267 $ $ 77,771 28.6315% 

2019 MERS (Plan A) 20,467 20,467 - 76,141 26.8804% 

2018 MERS (Plan A) 18,972 18,972 - 74,751 25.3803% 
2017 MERS (Plan A) 17,411 17,411 - 73,285 23.7579% 
2016 MERS (Plan A) 15,118 15,118 - 70,791 21.3558% 
2015 MERS (Plan A) 8,845 8,845 - 44,786 19.7495% 
2014 MERS (Plan A) 12,175 12,175 - 63,235 19.2536% 

2020 MPERS $ 674,058 $ 674,058 $ $ 2,034,122 33.1375% 
2019 MPERS 606,288 606,288 1,872,730 32.3746% 
2018 MPERS 594,793 594,793 1,887,441 31.5132% 
2017 MPERS 552,717 552,717 - 1,766,587 31.2873% 
2016 MPERS 543,670 543,670 - 1,762,885 30.8398% 
2015 MPERS 530,514 530,514 - 1,742,235 30.4502% 
2014 MPERS 583,058 583,058 - 1,866,063 31.2454% 

2020 FRSL $ 352,316 $ 352,316 S $ 1,174,371 30.0004% 
2019 FRSL 335,756 335,756 - 1,238,086 27.1190% 
2018 FRSL 328,753 328,753 <• 1,240,579 26.5000% 
2017 FRSL 340,232 340,232 - 1,315,095 25,8713% 
2016 FRSL 342,473 342,473 1,308,677 26,1694% 
2015 FRSL 345,454 345,454 1,226,730 28,1606% 
2014 FRSL 373,519 373,519 - 1,299,057 28,7531% 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

For reference only: 

' Employer contribution rate multiplied by employer's covered payroll 

^ Actual employer contributions remitted to Retirement Systems 

Employer's covered payroll amount for the year ended December 31 of each year 

The three Retirement Systems reported in this schedule are as follows: 

Mtjltiple Employer Cost Sharing Pension Plans: 
MERS (Plan A) = Municipal Employees' Retirement System 
MPERS = Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
FRSL = Firefighters Retirement System of Louisiana 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Notes to the Required Supplemental Information 

December 31,2020 
(UNAUDITED) 

a. Changes in benefit terms and assumptions related to total other post-employment benefit liability 

Changes of Benefit Terms 

There were no chmiges to the benefit terms that affected the total OPEB liabili^ 

Changes of Assumptions 

Discount Rate assumption 
Measurement Date Rate Change 
12/31/2020 2.12% (0.62%) 
12/31/2019 2.74% (1.36%) 
12/31/2018 4.10% 0.66% 
12/31/2017 3.44% 

Mortality assun^>tion 

The mortality rate table used in the actuarial valuation changed from RP-2000 Mortality Table to the SOA RP-2014 
Combined T^le for the year ended December 31,2020, the end of the current measurement period. 

Healthcare Cost Trend Rate assumption 

The healthcare cost trend rate changed from an annual flat 5.5% rate to a variable rate (see Note 20) for the year ended 
December 31,2020, the end of the current measurement period. 

b. Changes in benefit terms and assumptions related to multiple employer cost sharing pension plans 

Changes of Benefit Terms include: 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) 
• No Changes 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS) 
• No Changes 

Firefighters' Retirement System Louisiana (FRSL) 
• No Changes 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Notes to the Required Supplemental Information 

December 31,2020 
(UNAUDITED) 

b. Changes in benefit terms and assumptions related to multiple employer cost sharing pension plans (continued) 

Changes of Assumptions 

Discount Rate assumption 

The following discount rate changes were made to the pension plans identified in the following table: 

Dicount Rate: 
Year(*) Rate Change 
MERS 
2020 6.950% -0.050% 
2019 7.000% -0.275% 
2018 7.275% -0.125% 
2017 7.400% -0.100% 
2016 7.500% 0.000% 
2015 7.500% -0.250% 
2014 7.750% 

MPERS 
2020 6.950% -0.175% 
2019 7.125% -0.075% 
2018 7.200% -0.125% 
2017 7.325% -0.175% 
2016 7.500% 0.000% 
2015 7.500% 0.000% 
2014 7.500% 

FRSL 

2020 7.000% -0.150% 
2019 7.150% -0.150% 
2018 7.300% -0.100% 
2017 7.400% -0.100% 
2016 7.500% 0.000% 
2015 7.500% 

(*) The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios 

City of Bogalusa Employees* Retirement System only 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 
Total pension liability: 

Service Cost $ 385,555 S 510,150 $ 577,141 S 640,501 S 450,028 5 573,567 
Interest 1,002,661 813,074 812,035 825,027 510,581 802,188 
Difference between expected and actual experience (292,625) 1,382,875 (762,795) (2,493,396) 4,249,842 (472,600) 
Changes in assumptions (5,952,127) (3,303,869) - - - -
Benefit payments (1.063.390) (1,051,310) (1,133,375) (1,128,999) (1,152,324) (1.050.370) 
Net change in total pension liability (5,919,926) (1,649,080) (506,994) (2,156,867) 4,058,127 (147,215) 

Total pension liability - beginning 24.842,218 26,491,298 26,998,292 29.155,159 25,097,032 25.244,247 
ToUl pension liability - ending S 18,922,292 $ 24,842,218 S 26.491.298 $ 26,998,292 $ 29.155.159 S 25.097.032 

Plan fiduciary net position: 
Contributions employer $ 1,041,061 S 736,243 $ 421,769 $ 397,604 $ 371,358 $ 348,426 
Contributions employee 134.404 128,401 122,155 109,830 98,567 97,978 
Net investment income (loss) 105,991 234,872 200,457 359,096 (14,146) 248,314 
Benefit payments, refunds and expenses (1,063,390) (1,051,310) (1,133,375) (1,128,999) (1,152,324) (1,050,859) 
Other (4,842) (1,191) (1,416) f 1,702) (2.338) -
Change in plan fiduciary net pcsitdon 213,224 47,015 (390,410) (264,171) (698,883) (356,141) 

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 4,293,540 4.246.525 4.636,935 4.901.106 5,599.989 5,956,130 
Plan fiduciary net position - ending $ 4,506.764 $ 4.293.540 $ 4.246.525 s 4.636.935 S 4,901.106 S 5.599.989 

Net pension liability • beginning % 20,548.678 $ 22,244,773 $ 22,361,357 $ 24,254,053 $ 19,497,043 S 19,497,043 
Change in net pension liability (6,133,150) (1,696.095) (116,584) (1,892,696) 4,757,010 208.926 
Net pension liability • ending s 14.415.528 $ 20.548.678 s 22.244.773 $ 22.361.357 s 24.254.053 S 19.705,969 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 
the total pension liability 23.82% 17.28% 16.03% 17.17% 16.81% 22.31% 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

-72-



CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Single Employer Plan Contributions 

City of Bogalusa Employees^ Retirement System only 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

2020 2019 2018 2017 

Actuarially determined contribution 

Contributions in relation lo the actuarially 
determined contribution 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

Covered payroll 

Actuarially determined contributions as a 
percentage of covered payroll 

Actual contributions in relation to actuarially 
determined contributions as a percentage 
of covered payroll 

Contribution deficiency (excess) as a 
percentage of covered payroll 

1,424,671 S 1,114,238 S 1,160,114 S 1,126,471 

1.175.465 

249,206 

63.60% 

52.47% 

11.13% 

864,644 
249,594 

52.13% 

40.45% 

11.68% 

543,924 
616,190 

57,34% 

26,88% 

30.46% 

507,434 
619.037 

2,240,053 S 2,137,612 $ 2,023,237 $ 1,856,076 

60.69% 

27.34% 

33.35% 

2016 

1,100,137 

469,925 
630.212 

1,642,781 

66.97% 

28.61% 

38.36% 

Notes to schedule: 

Actuarial cost method 

Amortization method 

Remaining amortization period 

Asset valuation method 

Discount rate 

Inflation 

Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 

Retirement age 

Mortality 

Entry age normal cost 

Level dollar, closed 

30 years - Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) as of 6/30/2013 
15 years - Changes in UAL after 6/30/2013 

Market value 

4.06% - 2019, 3.071% - 2018, 2.878% • 2017; 2.093% 
- 2016; 3.208% 2015 and 2014 

3,50% 

4.5% average per year of employment and increase 
2.5% per year of aggregate payroll 

6.50% 

It has been assumed that retirements will not occur at 
any one age, but that the plan will experience 
retirements at different rates from age 50 through age 
69. It is assumed that everyone will retire by the age of 
69. 

For pre-retirement and post-retirement mortality, the rates 
of the 2019 Applicable Mortality Table (Optional 
Combined Table for Small Plans) were used. This table is 
a recent study of group annuitant mortality and should be 
representative of the pension plan's experience. 

Schedule is intended to show informallon for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2020 

(UNAUDITED) 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Revenues: 
Ad valorem taxes $ 2,242,100 $ 2,448,410 $ 2,445,345 $ (3,065) 
Sales taxes 2,963,175 3,247,675 3,236,820 (10,855) 
Other taxes 24,270 17,180 17,093 (87) 
Licenses and permits 391,080 385,465 390,841 5,376 
Franchise fees 301,110 307,680 326,229 18,549 
Intergovernmental 451,970 3,236,825 3,186,931 (49,894) 
Charges for services 101,450 126,965 130,008 3,043 
Fines 150,000 119,780 121,763 1,983 
biterest 1,265 1,015 1,090 75 
Miscellaneous 119,390 164,915 179,574 14,659 

Total revenues 6,745,810 10,055,910 10,035,694 (20,216) 

Expenditures: 
Current -

General government 2,915,475 2,746,840 2,668,084 78,756 
Public safety 5,187,055 5,403,395 5,526,019 (122,624) 
Public works 1,674,585 1,616,850 1,612,066 4,784 
Airport 121,695 121,890 77,533 44,357 

Capital outlay - 37,735 12,000 25,735 
Intergovernmental 261,965 266,150 267,013 (863) 

Total expenditures 10,160,775 10,192,860 10,162,715 30,145 

Deflciency of revenues under expenditures (3,414,965) (136,950) (127,021) 9,929 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds fo>m disposal of capital assets 1,000 - - -
Transfers to other funds (116,470) (476,470) (363,860) 112,610 
Transfers from other funds 3,303,615 2,787,140 2,764,001 (23,139) 

3,188,145 2,310,670 2,400,141 89,471 

Net change in fund balance (226,820) 2,173,720 2,273,120 99,400 

Fund balance, beginning 467,767 367,424 367,426 2 

Fund balance, ending $ 240,947 : B 2,541,144 $ 2,640,546 $ 99,402 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES IDUDGETTO ACTUALl 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2020 

fLNALDtTED^ 

Variance -
Original Final Favorable 
Budeet Budget Actual (UnfavDrahJe) 

Taxes: 
Ad valorem taxes $ 2,242,100 $ 2,448,410 S 2,445,345 $ (3,065) 
Sales tax 2,963,175 3,247,675 3,236,820 (10,855) 
Beer tax 16,000 16,820 16,733 (87) 
Bogalusa Housing Authority taxes 7,800 - -
Tax certiflcates 470 360 360 -

Total taxes 5.229.545 5.713.265 5,699,258 (14,007) 

Licenses and permits: 
Occupational licenses and interest 380,000 369,200 376,191 6,991 
Alcoholic beverages licenses and permits 11,000 13,695 13,695 . 
Electrical permits - 325 475 150 
Miscellaneous permits 80 30 30 -
Burial Permits and other .. 2.215 450 (1,765) 

Total licenses and permits 391,080 385.465 390,841 5J76 

Franchise fees 
Entergy Electrical 195,000 208,055 220,927 12,872 
Centerpoint Natural Gas 90,000 76,690 82,197 5,507 
Bell South / AT&T Franchise Fee 15,500 22,325 22,645 320 
Southern Lighting of LA 610 610 460 (150) 

Total franchise fees 301,110 307,680 326,229 18,549 

Intergovernmental: 
State Supplemental Pay 349,000 343,390 349,200 5,810 
Coronavirus Relief Funds - 2,706,975 2,706,975 _ 
Airport State Grant 50,000 100,350 39,126 (61,224) 
Louisiana Safety Commission Grant - 17,630 23,150 5,520 
Bogalusa School Board 52,970 26,485 26,484 (1) 
Department of Justice Grant - 41,995 41,996 1 

Total intergovernmental 451.970 3,236,825 3,186,931 (49,894) 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. (continued) 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES fBUDGET TO ACTIJALi 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR 1 UK YEAR ENDED DRCEMaER 31. 

fUNAUDITEPl 

Variance -
Original Final Favorable 
Budaet Budget Actual fUnfavorablc) 

Charges for services: 
Zoning change charges $ 500 $ 1,000 S 1,000 $ 
Wreck and fire reports 7,325 6,905 7,135 230 
Pound fees 310 335 335 -
Witness fees 6,795 6,450 6,740 290 
Recording deeds (6,030) (4,860) (5,300) (440) 
Research fees 2,700 3,660 4,225 565 
Bonding fees 25,130 42,155 42,805 650 
Fingerprint fees 3,930 2,040 2,120 80 
Archon collection fee 60,790 69,280 70,923 1,643 
Miscellaneous - 25 25 

Total charges for services 101,450 126,965 130,008 3.043 

Fines and Penalties 
Court Fines 150,000 119.780 121.763 1.983 

Total fines 150.000 119.780 121.763 1.983 

Interest: 
Interest earned 220 400 475 75 
Cassidy Park Campground Donations & Interest 1,025 570 573 3 
Main Street Donations & Interest 10 10 7 (3) 
Retirement Interest Earned 10 35 35 

Total interest earned 1,265 1,015 1.090 75 

Miscellaneous: 
2% fire insurance 59,000 60,515 60,515 _ 
Cemetery plot sales 11,000 19,600 21,000 1,400 
Airport income 3,050 3,150 3,150 -
Returned checks charges - 35 35 , 
Police seized funds - 10,880 12,218 1,338 
Over and short . 25 108 83 
Sale of adjudicated property - 5,025 5,024 (1) 
Xerox receipts - 230 229 (1) 
Rental Income 900 940 938 (2) 
Worker's Compensation Reimbursement - 16,445 22,430 5,985 
Other miscellaneous revenue 45,440 48,070 53,927 5,857 

Total miscellaneous 119J90 164,915 179,574 14.659 

TOTAL REVENUES S 6,745.810 $ 10.055.910 $ 10.035.694 $ (20.216) 
(concluded) 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES tBUDCET TO ACTUAL! 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2020 

fUNAUDITEDI 

Variance -
Original Final Favorable 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfovorabie) 

General Government: 

City Council: 
Salaries and wages $ 80,850 $ 90,970 $ 91,699 $ (729) 
Contract overtime 1,035 1,035 1,033 2 
Overtime - 125 126 (1) 
Supplies and expense 6,715 5,240 6,389 (1,149) 
Employee group insurance 7,730 7,920 8,602 (682) 
Auditing fees 80,000 55,375 45,376 9,999 
Publications 8,335 2,300 4,347 (2,047) 
City Employment Retirement System 3,400 3,405 3,402 3 
Payroll Tax Expense 4,350 5,135 5,132 3 

Total City Council 192,415 171,505 166,106 5,399 

Mayor's Office: 
Salaries and wages 108,740 108,655 109,645 (990) 
Contract overtime 1,070 1,070 1,070 -
OveTtime - - - -
Suppli^ and expense 14,910 8,005 7,043 962 
Gas and oil 2,000 1,310 907 403 
Employee group insurance 15,460 15,840 15,842 (2) 
Travel 1,100 - 178 (178) 
Dues and subscriptions - - 2,381 (2,381) 
City Employment Retirement System 3,520 3,515 3,515 -
Mayor's Municipal State Retirement System 21,600 22,270 22,267 3 
Payroll Tax Expense 1,595 1,590 1,591 (1) 

Total Mayor's Office 169,995 162,255 164,439 (2.184) 

City Attorney: 
Legal and professional 24,040 24,000 24,040 (40) 

Total City Attorney 24,040 24,000 24,040 (40) 

City Prosecutor: 
Salaries and wages 54,770 54,745 55,241 (496) 
Contract overtime 1,065 1,065 1,065 -
Overtime 1,500 2,135 1,952 183 
Supplies and expense 800 500 496 4 
Employee group insurance 7,730 7,920 7,921 (1) 
City Employment Retirement System 3,665 3,720 3,712 8 
Payroll Tax Expense 2,320 2.325 2,326 (1) 

Totai City Prosecutor $ 71,850 S 72v410 S 72,713 $ (303) 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. (continued) 
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CITY OF BQGALUSA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDTTIJRKS rBIJDCKT TO ACTIJA!.^ 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2020 

(LINAUDITEDI 

Variance • 
Origiaal Final Favorable 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfuvorabte) 

Personnel: 
Salaries and wages $ 45,845 $ 45,810 $ 46,229 $ (419) 
Supplies and expense 500 285 185 100 
Employee group insurance 7,730 7,920 7,921 (1) 
Travel 100 - 151 (151) 
City Employment Retirement System 5,045 5,040 5,039 1 
Payroll Tax Expense - - 1 (1) 

Total personnel 59,220 59,055 59,526 (471) 

Administration and Finance; 
Salaries and wages 258,850 262,385 264,746 (2,361) 
Contract overtime 4,645 4,660 4,597 63 
Overtime 1,500 2,330 2,353 (23) 
Uniform expense 1,400 1,400 1,400 -
Supplies and expense 30,575 34,200 33,758 442 
Gas and oil 250 100 44 56 
Employee group insurance 46,380 40,285 40,285 -
Travel 150 - -
Contract labor - pension records 12,000 - - -
City Employment Retirement System 29,990 23,490 23,459 31 
Payroll Tax Expense 3.955 4,070 4,067 3 

Total administration andfinance 389,695 372,920 374,709 (1,789) 

Purchasing: 
Salaries and wages 30,565 30,565 30,844 (279) 
Overtime - 35 33 2 
Supplies and expense 1,000 215 170 45 
Advertising 5,515 445 366 79 
City Employment Retirement System 3,360 3,365 3,366 (1) 
Payroll Tax Expense 445 445 444 1 

Total purchasing S 40,885 $ 35,070 S 35,223 S (153) 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. (continued) 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES ^BUDGET TO ACTU^) 

GENERA!. FUND 
FOJBJHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31.2020 

fUNAUDlTEDl 

Variance -
Original Final Favorable 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

General and Administrative: 
Interest expense 4,700 7,270 1,579 5,691 
Insurance expense 1,101,995 974,655 874,046 100,609 
Legal and other professional 285,000 278,645 371,205 (92,560) 
Utilities expense 315,790 260,725 242,272 18,453 
Coronor's expense 34,475 39,700 44,844 (5,144) 
Wash. Parish Veterans Office 14,550 7,135 5,945 1,190 
Municipal fire and police - civil service 3,600 3,600 3,750 (150) 
Employee Relations - - 4,050 (4,050) 
Bonding fees expense 12,850 - 3,376 (3,376) 
Assessor's expenses 6,400 6,400 5,811 589 
Advertising 11,620 20,330 22,851 (2,521) 
Youth Services 1,500 - - -
Miscellaneous 39,010 23,220 20,408 2,812 
Election expense 20,000 20,000 19,083 917 
Planning and zoning 3,600 3,660 3,660 -
Sales Tax Collection Expense 45,170 47,685 - 47,685 
Centenial Jubilee and beautification expenses 1,000 - - . 
City beautifcation project 2,000 1,000 • 1,000 
ARCHON Information Services 64,115 75,600 65,718 9,882 
March Flood Expenses - 80,000 82,730 (2,730) 

Total general and administrative 1,967,375 1,849,625 1,771,328 78,297 

Total genera! government S 2,915,475 S 2,746,840 $ 2,668,084 $ 78,756 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. (continued) 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES munCKT TO ACTIJAI,! 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 202ft 

rUNAUDfTEDl 

Variance -
Original Final Favorable 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

Public Safctv 

Police: 

Salaries and wages $ 1,373,055 $ 1,337,755 $ 1,359,756 $ (22,001) 
Contract overtime 139,100 137.640 137,666 (26) 
Overtime 105,990 214,760 220,340 (5,580) 
State supplemental pay 168,500 169,420 174,333 (4,913) 
Uniform allowance 16,400 14,340 12,572 1,768 
Supplies and expense 54,515 52,960 60,574 (7,614) 
Signs and maintenance 2,760 2,510 3,548 (1,038) 
Gas and oil 55,000 48,950 35,076 13,874 
Tools and small equipment - 15,470 13,168 2,302 
Employee group insurance 293,730 277,570 278,929 (1,359) 
Travel 5,775 5,690 6,584 (894) 
Repairs - equipment and radios 2,340 500 325 175 
Equipment 11,540 - 82,282 (82,282) 
Special investigations 500 500 300 200 
Education and training 6,940 6,230 6,050 180 
City Employment Retirement System 3,085 3,085 3,082 3 
Reserve Officer Expenses 7,000 14,600 13,825 775 
Police State Pension 535,835 538,000 534,220 3,780 
Payroll Tax Expense 25,905 27,095 26,950 145 
Bonding Fees - 83,320 1,036 82,284 

Total police 2,807,970 2,950,395 2,970,616 (20,221) 

Fire: 

Salaries and wages 1,172,645 1,163,870 1,173,373 (9,503) 
Contract overtime 140,030 124,900 124,100 800 
Overtime 68,215 265,775 281,006 (15,231) 
Holiday pay 75,000 - 71,748 (71,748) 
State supplemental pay 168,500 161,970 162,867 (897) 
Tools and small equipment - 22,880 23,394 (514) 
Uniform allowance 10,875 9,265 9,225 40 
Supplies and expense 24,690 20,460 28,924 (8,464) 
Equipment 28,920 31,045 25,370 5,675 
Gas and oil 15,720 13,390 11,597 1,793 
Employee group insurance 239,620 240,000 236,195 3,805 
Travel 3,500 6,640 4,450 2,190 
Repair - equipment 10,030 10,840 16,215 (5,375) 
Education and training 9,000 1,145 10,504 (9,359) 
Fire State Pension 388,785 356,570 352,316 4,254 
Payroll Tax Expense 23,555 24,250 24,119 131 

Total fire 2,379,085 2,453,000 2,555,403 (102,403) 

Total public safety S 5,187,055 $ 5,403,395 $ 5,526,019 $ (122,624) 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. (continued) 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA 
SCHKDCLE OF EXPENDITURES (BUDGET TO ACTUALS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED OECKiVIBER 31. 2020 
(UNAUDITED^ 

Original Final 
Variance -
Favorable 

Budeet Budget Actual (Unfiivorable) 
Public Works 

Public works - central: 
Salaries and wages $ 783,110 $ 725,500 $ 747,164 S (21,664) 
Overtime 41,185 90,890 86,834 4,056 
Contract overtime 1,905 1,905 1,906 (1) 
Allowance - rainsuits, clothing 2,450 2,240 2,180 60 
Supplies and expense 41,780 23,230 23,477 (247) 
Equipment 15,910 - - -
Gas and oil 56,050 46,090 32,536 13,554 
Tools and Equipment 19,055 16,960 13,783 3,177 
Cemetary maintenance materials 8,510 4,895 4,895 -
Uniform expense 24,105 15,340 13,790 1,550 
Employee group insurance 208,700 175,550 176,231 (681) 
Travel - 500 418 82 
Education & Tiainiiig - 45 45 -
Repairs - equ^ment 1,000 1,425 927 498 
City Enqrloyment Retirement System 80,415 77,840 77,613 227 
Payroll Tax Expense 14,660 14.520 14,516 4 

Total puMic vporks - central 1,298,835 1,196,930 1,196,315 615 

Public works - electrical: 
Salaries and wages 42,810 42,800 43,188 (388) 
Overtime 3,000 10,730 10,212 518 
Allowance - rainsuits, clothing 130 130 130 -
Supplies and expense 11,310 2,580 3,756 (1,176) 
Tools and equipment 5,000 - - -
Employee group insurance 7,730 7,920 7,921 (I) 
City Employment Retirement System 5,040 5,765 5,755 10 
Payroll Tax Expense 665 770 769 1 

Total public works - elect/ieal 75,685 70,695 71,731 (1,036) 

Public works - motor pool: 
Salaries and wages 109,150 92,835 95.676 (2,841) 
Overtime 6,000 25,100 24,916 184 
Allowance - rainsuits, clothing 280 340 340 -
Supplies and expense 25,495 18,270 16,526 1,744 
Tools and equipment 6,010 7,270 5,848 1,422 
Gas and oil 8,000 8,715 5,808 2,907 
Employee group insurance 30,920 25,050 25,051 (1) 
Vehicle maintenance - general 3,580 1,575 1,396 179 
Vehicle maintenance - police 49,935 77,750 73,742 4,008 
Vehicle maintenance - fire 19,520 39,295 41,441 (2,146) 
Vehicle maintenance - public works 27,870 38,355 38,480 (125) 
Licenses - chauffeurs 550 135 135 
City Employment Retirement System 11,055 12,825 12,934 (109) 
Payrol] Tax Expense 1,700 IJIO 1,727 (17) 

Total public works - motor pool 300,065 349,225 344,020 5,205 

Total public works S 1,674,585 $ 1,616.850 S 1,612,066 S 4,784 

See accompanying ind^endent auditor's rqxMt. (continued) 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES f BUDGET TO ACTUALS 

CE^ERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2020 

lUNAUDITEDI 

Original Final 
Variance -
Favorable 

Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

Airport: 
State airport grant expense $ 50,000 $ 38,325 $ - $ 38,325 
Utilities 40,000 49,180 49,786 (606) 
Maintenance 19,855 19,430 14,093 5,337 
Supplies and expense 6,340 7,295 6,606 689 
Gas & oil 2,000 1,280 669 611 
Insurance-Property Damage 3,500 6,380 6,379 1 

Total airport 121,695 121,890 77,533 44,357 

Capital outlay 37,735 12,000 25,735 

Intergovernmental: 
City court personnel compensatioo 198,675 199,665 200,700 (1,035) 
City court supplies and expense 63,290 66,485 66,313 172 

Total intergovernmental 261,965 266,150 267,013 (863) 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 10,160.775 S 10.192,860 $ 10,162,715 S 30.145 
((Kmcludcd) 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

INDUSTRIAL COMPLEX SALES TAX FUND 

fUNAUDITED) 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 
Revenues: 

Sales Taxes 
Interest 

$ 275,400 3 

1,080 

i 202,980 : 

1,155 

$ 180,031 

1,119 

$ (22,949) 
(36) 

Total revenues 276,480 204,135 181,150 (22,985) 

Expenditures: 

General Government 
Economic Development 
Capital Outlay 

189,610 
61,870 

146,680 

2,018,029 

155,661 

(2,018,029) 

(8,981) 

Total expenditures 251,480 146,680 2,173,690 (2,027,010) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 
expenditures 25,000 57,455 (1,992,540) (2,049,995) 

Other financing uses: 
Transfers out to other funds (25,000) (2,075,060) (25,000) 2,050,060 

(25,000) (2,075,060) (25,000) 2,050,060 

Net change in fund balance (2,017,605) (2,017,540) 65 

Fund balance, beginning 1,977,202 2,017,608 2,017,608 

Fund balance, ending $ 1,977,202 a ; 3 : E 68 $ 65 

See accompanying Independent auditor's report. 
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Other Supplemental Information 



Non-Major Governmental Funds 



CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Non-Major Governmental Funds 

December 31, 2020 

Special Revenue Funds 

Employee Pay Raise Sales Tax - Accounts for the receipt of a 1/2 cent sales and ase tax. The proceeds are 
dedicated to the purpose of paying salaries and benefits of City employees. The tax is for an indefinite period. 

Street Improvement Sales Tax - Accounts for the receipt of 25% of a one-cent sales and use tax. The proceeds 
are dedicated to street and drainage repair, maintenance, operation and additions. 

Capital Improvement Sales Tax - Accounts for the receipt of 15% of a one-cent sales and use tax. The proceeds 
are dedicated to the acquisition, operation, and maintenance of land, buildings, and equipment. 

Industrial Complex Rent/Lease - Accounts for the receipt of rent from the Industrial Park. Expenditures are 
not legally restricted for any certain purpose. 

Youth Recreation and Parks - Accounts for the receipt of 50% of a 4-mill ad valorem tax dedicated for 
acquiring, constructing, improving, operating and maintaining parks and recreation facilities. 

Jail Operations Sales Tax - Accoimts for the receipt of one-third of one percent (1/3%) sales and use tax 
dedicated for improvements, maintenance and operation of the City Jail, including, but not limited to, the 
construction of additions to or expansions of the existing Bogalusa City Jail and for purchasing, maintaining and 
operating related equipment. 

LCDBG Fund - Accounts for the receipt of the LCDBG grant dedicated to improvements and renovations of 
the water tower owned by the City. 

Brownlields Assessment Grant Fund - Accounts for the receipt of Brownficlds Assessment grant funds used 
for Type I assessments of property to be used for commercial purposes. 

Retirement Special Fund - Accounts for the receipt of taxes that are dedicated for the City of Bogalusa 
Employees' Retirement System. 

Landfill Fund - Accounts for the receipt of a 5-mill ad valorem tax dedicated to constructing, acquiring, improving, 
maintaining and/or operating landfill facilities for the city, including acquisition of land therefore. This fund also 
accounted for the City's investment in operations of the Choctaw Road Landfill, a joint venture with the Washington 
Parish Government; however, the joint venture was dissolved as of December 31, 2019. 

Municipal Building Fund - Accounts for the receipt of a 2-mill ad-valorem tax dedicated to improvements and 
renovations to existing structures owned by the City. 

Capital Projects Fund 

Airport Expansion Fund - Accounts for the federal grant revenues and expenditures thereof for capital 
improvements at the George R. Carr Memorial Airport. 

Debt Service Funds 

General Obligation Bond Sinking Fund - Accumulates monies for payment of the $1,750,000 General 
Obligations Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 for street overlay. 
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ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Property taxes receivable 

CITY OF BOGALUSA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAl. FUNDS 
DECEMBER .11. 2020 

Special Revenue Funds 
Youth 

Employee Pay Street Capital Industrial Ri^reation 
Raise SBIM Tax Improvement Improvement Complex and Parka Jail Operations 

Fnnd Sales Tax Fund Sales Tax Fund Rent/Lease Fund Fund Sales Tax Fund LCDBGFund 

5,470 J 220,627 $ 581,442 $ 238,976 S 80,556 $ 
107,085 

704 $ 133,175 

Accounts receivable 120,876 60,438 36,215 2,492 - 80,211 49,906 
Due from other funds . 118 - - 1.510 281 -

TOTAL ASSETS 126.346 281,183 617.657 241,468 189.151 81.196 183,081 

DEFERRED OUTFI .OWS OF RESOURCES 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED 
OUTFLOWS S 126.346 S 281,183 $ 617,657 $ 241,468 $ 189.151 S 81.196 S 183,(W1 

TJABnJTIES 
Accounts payable s - s 2,706 $ 1,720 S - $ 7,969 $ 6,988 S 182,981 
Accrued expenses - - - - 1,666 16,662 -
Due to other funds 125.346 - - - . 22,322 . 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 125,346 2,706 1.720 . 9.635 45,972 182.981 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unearned revenue - - - . 3.408 . -

FUND BALANCES 
Itotricted lor: 

Debt service - - - - - -
Capital projects - - 615,937 - - - -
Maintenance - - - - - - -
Special programs 1,000 278,477 - 241,468 176.108 35,224 too 

Unassigne^ . - • - - - -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 1.000 278.477 615.937 241.468 176,108 35.224 100 

TOTAL LIABIUTIES, DEFERRED 
INFLOWS, AND FUND BALANCES $ 126,346 S 281,183 S 617,657 $ 241.468 S 189.151 $ 81,196 S 183.081 

(continued) 

See acconqHinying independent ai^toPs leport 
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See accompanying independent auditor's report 

CITY OF BOGALUSA 
COMBLNING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31. 2020 

Special Revenue Funds 
Capital Debt Service 

Funds 

Brownsfield 
Assessment 
Grant Fund 

Retirement 
Special Mill 

Fund LaodJiU Fund 
Munic^al 

BnildisE Fund 

Airport 
Expansion 

Fund 

General 
Obligation Bond 

Sinkine Fund 

Total Non-
Major 

Governmental 
Funds 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalmts 
Property taxes receivable 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other funds 
Prepaid Expenses 

$ 5 S 159,263 
146,511 
90,649 

3.092 

$ 193,492 
267,980 

3,779 

$ 402,561 
107,085 

1,510 

S 42,960 

133,820 

$ 299,231 
26,638 

376 

S 2,358,462 
655,299 
574,607 
10,666 

TOTAL ASSETS 5 399.515 465.251 511.156 176,780 326^45 3.599.034 

DEFERRED OlI i'FLOWS OF RESOTIRCES . . 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED 
OTJThLOWS $ 5 S 399.515 S 465.251 S 511.156 $ 176.780 $ 326.245 S 3,599.034 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Due to other funds 
Due to other governments 

$ S 394,850 s 287,294 s 2,477 S 75,945 

100,835 

$ S 962,930 
18,328 

248,503 

TOTAL LIABmiTlES - 394,850 287.294 2.477 176,780 . 1.229,761 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOL^CES 
Property taxes unavailable for current yeaa 4.665 8,531 3,415 848 20,867 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 
Capital projects 
Maintenance 
Special programs 

Unassigned 
5 

-

169,426 
505,264 

- 325,397 325,397 
615,937 
505,264 
901,808 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 5 - 169.426 505.264 - 325397 2,348.406 

TOTAL LIABILmES, DEFERRED 
INFLOWS, AND FUND BALANCES $ 5 $ 399,515 $ 465,251 $ 511,156 $ 176,780 $ 326,245 $ 3,599,034 

(concluded) 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES I\ FUND BALANCF-S 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDFR nr.rF.VTHER 31.2020 

Special Revepne FItnds 
i&ousinai 

Street Capital Complex Youth 
Employee Pay Improvement Improvement Rent/Lease Recreation and Jail Operations 
Sales Tax Fund Sales Tax Fund Sales Tax Fund Fund Parks Fund Sales Tax Fund LCDBG Fund 

Reveoues: 
Ad valorem Taxes $ S $ $ S 174,427 $ % 
Sales Taxes \:m,s2i 610,263 365,671 - - 805,288 . 
lotergovenunental • - - - - 51,167 998,115 
loterest 25 120 189 53 SO 11 -
Rent - - - 392,971 - - . 
Miscellaneous . - - - 15,191 39.673 -

Total revenues 1^0^52 610.383 365.860 393.024 189,668 896,139 998.115 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
Public safety - - - - - 922,263 -
Public worits - 476,922 93,203 • - - * 
Landfill - - - - - -
Culture and Recreation « - . . 155,942 - . 
Economic Develc^ment - - - 58,126 - -

Capital outlay - - 6,995 - - - -
Debt Service: 
Capital lease payments - - 57,935 - - - -
Interest - - 10,126 - - - • 

Total expenditures . 476,922 168.259 58.126 155.942 922.263 . 

Excess (dcGckney) of revenues over (undCT) expenditures 1,220,552 133,461 197,601 334,898 33,726 (26,124) 998,115 

Otber financing sources (uses): 
Transfers to other funds (1,220,552) - - (305,000) • - (998,115) 
Transfers from other funds - - - - 142,382 - -

fU20.552i . . (305.000) 142.382 - (998.115) 

Net change in fund balance - 133,461 197,601 29,898 176,108 (26.124) -

Fnnd balance, begumiug 1.000 145.016 418.336 211,570 _ 61348 100 

Fund balance, eading S 1.000 S 278.477 S 615,937 S 241,468 $ 176.108 S 35324 S 100 

See accompanying independent auditor's report (continued) 
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CITY OF BOGAI.TISA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITDRRS. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

ESQJirMAJOR GOVERNMENT AT. FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2020 

Special Revenue Fiind« 
Capital Debt Service 

Funds 

See accompanying independent auditor's report 

lieoeral Total Non-
BrownsfieM Retirement Municipal Airport Obligation Major 
Assessment Special Mill Building Expansion Bond Sinking Governmental 
Grant Fund Fund Landfill Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds 

Revenues: 
Ad valorem Taxes $ $ 238,631 S 436,473 S 174,421 $ S 46,497 $ 1,070,449 
Sales Taxes 731,479 - - . 3,733,228 
Intergovernmental . • • 310,430 _ 1,359,712 
Interest 42 47 122 - 209 868 
Rent . . _ 392,971 
Miscellaneous - - - - - 54,864 

Total revenna 970.152 436.520 174.543 310.430 46,706 6,612.092 

ExpendituKs: 
Current: 
General government 970,152 - - - 970,152 
Public safety - . . . . 922,263 
Public works - . - - 570,125 
Landfill 287,294 - - . 287,294 
Culture and Recreation - . 77,580 - . 233,522 
Economic Development - - - - - 58,126 
Airport - • - 133,819 - 133,819 

Capital outlay - 24,113 176,611 - 207,719 
Debt Service -
Coital lease payments - - - - 57,935 
Principal - - - - 145,000 145,000 
Interest - • • . 17.717 27,843 

Total expeaditures 970.152 287.294 101,693 310.430 162.717 3.613.798 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over (under) expenditures - 149.226 72,850 - (116,011) 2,998,294 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers to other funds • - - - - (2,523,667) 
Transfers from ofrier funds - - . 94,921 237.303 • - - - - 94,921 (2.286,364) 

Net change in fund balance - 149,226 72,850 - (21,090) 711,930 

Fund balance, beemnins 5 20.200 432.414 346.487 1,636,476 

Fund balance. endiDe S 5 $ $ 169.426 S 505.264 S $ 325397 S 2.348.406 
(concluded) 



Schedule Required by State Law LSA RS 24:513A(l)(a)(3) 



CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Schedule Required by State Law LSA RS 24:513A(l}(a)(3): 

Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Agency Head 
December 31, 2020 

The following schedule is required by Louisiana State Law LSA RS 24:513(l)(a)(3) on 
compensation and benefits paid to the agency head; 

Agency Head Name: Wendy O'Quin Perrette, Mayor 

Purpose Amount 
Salary $ 77,771 
Benefits-insurance - health 7,921 
Benefits-insurance - life 189 
Benefits-retirement 22,267 
PayroUTaxes 1,128 
Car Allowance 907 
Reimbursement or fiiel 
Per diem 
Travel 178 
Membership dues(LMA) 2,381 

$ 112,742 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 
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Schedules Required by State Law Act 87 RS 24:515.2 



CITY OF BOnALUSA.T.OQjiTANA 
JUSTICE SYSTEM FUNDING SCHEDULE - COLLECTING AND DISBURSING 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 

This schedule was prescribed by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Ofllce as required 
by Act 87 of the 2020 Regular Session 

Cash Basis Presentation 

Beginning Balance of Amounts Collected 

Add: Collections 
Asset Forfeiture/Sale 

Subtotal Collections 

Less: Disbursements To Governments & Nonprofits: 

22nd Judicial Court - District Attorney/Asset Forfeitures 

Less: Amounts Retained by Collecting Agency 
Amounts "Self-Disbursed" to Collecting Agency - Asset Forfeiture 

Subtotal Disbursements/Retainage 

Total: Ending Balance of Amounts CoUected 
but not Disbursed/Retained (i.e. cash on hand) 

First Six Month 
Period Ended Second Six Month 

06/30/2020 Period Ended 12/31/20 

$ - $ 5,247 

18,674 16,224 

18,674 16,224 

13,427 8,253 

- 1,000 

13,427 9,253 

$ 5,247 $ 12,218 

Ending Balance of "Partial Payments" Collected but not Disbursed {only applies 
if collecting agency does not disburse partial payments until fully collected ) - This 
balance is included in the Ending Balance of Amounts Collected but not 
Disbursed/Retained above. 

Other Information: 

Ending Balance of Total Amounts Assessed but not yet Collected {i.e. receivable 
balance) 

Total Waivers During the Fiscal Period {i.e. non-cash reduction of receivable 
balances, such as time served or community service ) 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA. LOUISIANA 
JUSTICE SYSTEM FUNDING SCHEDULE - RECEIVING 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 

This schedule was prescribed by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Office as required 
by Act 87 of the 2020 Regular Session 

Cash Basis Presentation 

Receipts From: 
Bogalusa City Court/ Bonding Fees 
Bogalusa City Court/ Criminal Court Costs Fees 
Bogalusa City Court/ Criminal Fines Other 
Bogalusa City Court/ Probation/Patrol/Supervision Fees 
Bogalusa City Court/ Other 

Total Receipts 

Ending Balance of Amounts Assessed but Not Received 

First Six Month 
Period Ended 

06/30/2020 

24,905 
40,593 
19,787 

125 
3,360 

Second Six Month 
Period Ended 12/31/20 

17,900 
44,386 
16,573 

300 
3,380 

88,770 $ 82,539 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 
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Information Required by Debt Agreements 



CITY OF BOGALUSA. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE 
DECEMBER 31.2020 

^ONAUDITEDI 

Poli^ 
PrDperty/mland Marine 

Insurance Company 
Scottsdaie Insurance Company 

Electronic Equipment Liberty Mutual 

Equipment Breakdown Travelers 

Crime Travelers 

Airport Liability Lessor's Risk Only Old Republic Insurance Company 

Automotive Houston Specialty Insurance Co. 

Term 
3/25/2017-3/25/2018 
3/25/2018 - 03/25/2019 
03/25/2019 - 03/25/2020 
03/25/2020-03/25/2021 
03/25/2021-03/25/2022 

1/1/2017- 1/1/2018 
1/1/2018- 1/1/2019 
1/1/2019 - 1/1/2020 
1/1/2020- 1/1/2021 
1/1/2021-1/1/2022 

1/I/20I7- 1/1/2018 
1/1/2018- 1/1/2019 
1/1/2019- 1/1/2020 
1/1/2020- 1/1/2021 
01/01/2021-01/01/2022 

2/12/2017 - 2/12/2020 
2/12/2020 - 2/12/2023 

11/1/2016- 11/1/2017 
11/1/2017- 11/1/2018 
11/1/208- 11/1/2019 
11/1/2019- 11/1/2020 
11/1/2020 - 11/1/2021 

3/7/2017 - 3/7/2018 
3/7/2018 - 3/7/2019 
3/7/2019 - 3/7/2020 
3/7/2020 - 3/7/2021 
3/7/2021 - 3/7/2022 

Policy # 
CPS2627404 
CPS2799I4 
CPX2978250 
CPS7086898 
CPS7327438 

IM8107636 
1M8107636 
IM8107636 
bmw2160278339 
BMW2160278339 

M5J-BM1-1942X304-TIL17 
M5J-BM1-1942X304-TIL18 
MS J-BM1-1942X304-T1L19 
M5J-BM1-1942X304-T1L20 
MSJ-BM1-142X304-TIL21 

105562262 
105562262 

PR 00258804 
PR 00258805 
PR 00258805 
PR 00258805 
PR00258808 

HSLRl 8-00073-06 
HSLRl 8-00073-07 
HSLRl 8-00073-08 
HSLRl 8-00073-09 
HSLR18-00073-10 

Coverage 
Various 
Various 
Various 
Various 
Various 

577,000 
577,000 
577,000 
577,000 
577,000 

100,000 each 
100,000 each 
100,000 each 
100,000 each 

1000,000 each 

75,000 
75,000 

2,000,00 each 
2,000,000 each 
2,000,000 each 
2,000,000 each 
2,000,000 each 

Various 
Various 
Various 
Various 
Various 

Automotive 
2017 Chevy Traverse # 45492 

Automotive 
2006Dodge Ram# 12518 
2018 Dodge Ram #64773 
2018Dodge Ram#66319 

Houston Specialty Insurance Co. 04/01/2021 - 04/ 01/2022 HSLR18-06805-02 

Houston Specialty Insurance Co, 04/01/2021 - 04/01/2022 HSLRl 8-06801-02 

500,000 Liability/ 
100,000 Uninsured Motorist 

500,000 Liability 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF BQGALUSA, LOUISIANA 

PUBLIC UTILITY SYSTEM OPERATIONS 
DECEMBER 3t.202fl 

(UNAUDITED^ 

Statistics on System Operations 

(a) As of December 31,2020, there were 4,990 total metered customers for the water system. 

(b) The following rate schedules were in effect during the fiscal year for water services: 

Water; 
Residential and 

Commercial 
Inside City 

First 3,000 gallons $ 15.44 
Per additional 1,000 gallons $ 2.47 

(c) Average monthly billing per residential customer was: 

Water, Sewer and Garbage Collection $ 62.64 

(d) Average monthly billing per commercial customer was: 

Water, Sewer and Garbage Collection $ 170.07 

Residential and 
Commercial 
Outside Citv 

30.88 
4.94 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Wendy O'Quin Perrette, Mayor 
And the Members of the City Council 
City of Bogalusa, Louisiana 

I have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the City of Bogalusa, Louisiana (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31 , 2020, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Bogalusa's basic financial 
statements and have issued my report thereon dated September 30, 2021. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements, I considered the City's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing my opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, I do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during my audit I did not identify any deficiencies 
in internal control that I consider to be material weaknesses. I did identify a certain deficiency in internal 
control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2020-003 that I 
consider to be a significant deficiency. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on die 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of my audit, and accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results 
of my tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or otiier matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Attdiiing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs as items 2020-001 and 2020-002. 

City of Bogalusa*s Responses to Findings* 

The City of Bogalusa's responses to the findings identified in my audit are described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The City of Bogalusa*s responses were not subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, I express no opinion 
on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on die effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordmice with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this commimicatiaa is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Bogalusa, Louisiana 
September 30,2021 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE 

UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Honorable Wendy O'Quin Perrette, Mayor 
And the Members of the City Council 
City of Bogalusa, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

I have audited the City of Bogalusa, Louisiana's (the City) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect 
on each of the City of Bogalusa, Louisiana's major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 
2020. The City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City's major federal programs 
based on my audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. I conducted my audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that I plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Bogalusa, 
Louisiana's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as I considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, my audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In my opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended December 31, 2020. 
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing my 
audit of compliance, I considered the City's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements 
that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance 
for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance 
with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's intemal 
control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance with 
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

My consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. I did not identify any deficiencies 
in intemal control over compliance that T consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of my testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Bogalusa, Louisiana 
September 30, 2021 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA, LDUISIAJNA 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended December 31,2020 

FEDERAL GRANTORy 
PASS-THROUGH GRANTORyPROGRAM NAME 

United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Passed Through Louisiana Office of the Govcmoi 

Communis Development Block Grants/State administerec 
Total United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Assitance 
Number 

14.228 

Expendtturcs 

998,115 

998,115 

United States Department of Justice 
Public Safely Partnership and Community Policing Grants 
Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistant Grant 
Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding Program - COVID-H 

Total United States Department of Justice 

16.710 
16.738 
16.034 

209 
5,614 

36,173 

41,996 

United States Department of Transportation 
Passed Through the Louisiana Department of Transportation; 

Airport Improvement Progran: 
CARES Act Airport Grant - COVID-19 

Total United States Departing of Transportation 

National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) 
Passed Through the Louisiana Highway Safety Commission (LHSC; 

State and Community Highway Safety 
Total National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) 

20.106 
20.106 

20.600 

61,200 
30.000 
91,200 

23,150 
23,150 

United States Department of the Treasury 
Passed Through the Louisiana Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness 

Coronavirus Relief Funds - COVID-19 
Total United States Department of the Treasury 

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS 

21.019 2,706,975 
2,706,975 

3,861,436 

Clusters 
' Highway Safety Cluster 

Cluster Total 
$ 23,150 

See notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 

-98-



CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Note A - General 

The City of Bogalusa's (the City) Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all 
federal financial assistance programs of the primary government. All federal financial assistance received 
directly from federal agencies is included on the schedule, as well as federal financial assistance passed-
through other agencies. The City of Bogalusa did not pass through any federal assistance to other entities. 

Note B - Basis of Accounting 

The City's Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the modified accrual basis of 
accounting, which is described in Note 1 to the financial statements for the year ended December 31,2020. 

Note C - Indirect Costs 

The City does not have a negotiated indirect cost rate. Also, the City elected to not use the 10% de minimis 
cost rate as allowed by 2 CFR 200.414 Indirect (F&A) costs. 

Note D - RclationshiD to Fmancia! Statements 

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) was prepared from the same accounting records 
as were used to prepare the financial statements. 

Federal awards are reported on the City's financial statements as follows: 

Governmental 
Funds 

Intergovernmental Revenue $ 4,546,643 
Less: State and other included in 

intergovernmental revenue (685,207) 

Total on Schedule of Expenditures 
of Federal Awards $ 3,861,436 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

A. Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting: 
• Material weakness (cs) identified? 
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are 

not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal Conbol over Major Programs: 
• Material weakness (cs) identified? 
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are 

not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Unmodified for all opinion units 
presented. Adverse for the reporting 
entity due to the omission of 
discretely presented component units 

yes X no 

X ves 

JC yes 

none reported 

no 

yes 

yes 

no 

X none reported 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with Title 2, CFR 200.516(a)? yes X no 

Identification of major programs: 

Assistance ListingNum^rs 

14.228 
21.019 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) 
Coronavinis Relief Fund — COVID-19 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between types A and B programs: $750.000 

The City of Bogalusa did not qualify as a low-risk auditce. 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended December 31,2020 

B. Findings - Financial Reporting 

Noncompliance with laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements 

2020-001 

Criteria 

Condition 

Cause 

Effect 

Recommendation 

Underfunded Retirement System 

State Law (R.S. 11:3031 - 3053) created the City of Bogalusa Employee's Retirement 
System (COBERS) and provides for its administration. R.S. 11:3045(A) states, "The City 
shall make contributions to the system each year on an actuarially funded basis, toward the 
annuities and benefits herein provided." 

At June 30, 2020, the City's sponsored defined benefit pension plan (COBERS) was 
severely underfunded. The funded ratio at June 30,2020 was 23.82% and the net pension 
liability was $14,415,528. This is a repeat finding. 

The stock market decline of2008 combined with other demographic conditions such as an 
aging woikforce and longevity of retirement have caused required contribution levels to 
increase. The City's budget 1ms been unable to absorb these increases and therefore the 
increases have gone unfimded. 

The assets held in tmst are severely deficient of the amount needed to pay the pension 
benefits promised to employees over the long term. 

Although the City increased the contributions made to COBERS during 2020 with the 
revenue from sales tax rededications and voter approval of an additional rededication of 
sales tax on July 11, 2020, the City should continue to find ways to provide additional 
funding to the retirement plan to ensure that the retirement system is actuarially funded in 
accordance with state law. 

Management's 
Response The City's pension plan, as is the case with many defined benefit plans throughout the 

nation, is critically underfunded. 

In addition to sales tax rededications, the City added approximately $2,000,000 to the 
retirement plan in December 2020 &om the rededication of the Industrial Sales Tax fund. 
This was not reflected in the June 30,2020 actuarial valuation. 

The City is also exploring ways to reduce expenditures so more funds will be available to 
contribute to the system. 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

B. Findings - Financial Reporting (continued) 

2020-002 Bond Covenants 

Criteria 

Condition 

Cause 

Effect 

Recommendation 

Management's 
Response 

The covenants of the Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2009 A and B, and the Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, the Assets, Revenue and Expenses of the water system operation are to 
be identified and accounted for separately. 

A separate accounting for Water System Operations has not been developed. Parts of this 
finding are a repeat from the prior year. 

The City's finance staff is not familiar with the terms of the bonds, and according to them, 
were misinformed by consultants regarding the need for separate accounting for the Water 
System Operations. 

Violation of bond covenants. 

The City should periodically review all bond covenants and ensure that the City is in 
compliance. Additionally, the Water and Sewer and Garbage Operations should be 
separated into separate fiinds. 

The revenue and expenses are accounted for separately. The assets and liabilities have 
always been combined. We do not have the records to separate these. However, we will 
research this further to try to do so. 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

B. Findings - Financial Reporting (continued) 

Internal Control Matters 

2020-003 

Criteria 

Condition 

Cause 

Effect 

Recommendation 

Management's 
Response 

Capital Asset Records 

Capital Asset records should be maintained in accordance LA Revised State 24:515. Capital 
Asset system should capture information such as tagging numbers or identifying numbers, 
serial numbers, fiinding source, department, cost and dates of purchase. 

Capital Asset accounting records do not contain tagging or serial numbers or funding 
source. Additionally, the records are updated only once per year through a manual process 
lacking efficiency and automation. Part of this is a repeat finding. 

Outdated accounting systems and processes. 

Without a centralized and automated process, assets may go unaccounted for. 

The City should centralize and automate its coital asset records and include all identifying 
information and donated assets. 

The City has incorporated the current fixed assets into the financial accounting system. We 
are also researching software and equipment to tag the fixed assets. 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

A. Findings Affecting the Financial Statements 

Noncompliance with laws^ reeulatioits. contracts and grant agreements 

2019-001 

Criteria 

Condition 

Cause 

Effect 

Recommendation 

Underfunded Retirement System 

State Law (R.S. 11:3031 - 3053) created the City of Bogalusa Employee's 
Retirement System (COBERS) and provides for its administration. R.S. 
11:3045(A) states, "The City shall make contributions to the system each year on 
an actuarially funded basis, toward the annuities and benefits herein provided." 

At June 30, 2019, the City's sponsored defined benefit pension plan (COBERS) 
was severely underfunded. The funded ratio at June 30,2019 was 17.28% and the 
net pension liability was $20,548,678. This is a repeat finding. 

The stock market decline of 2008 combined with other demographic conditions 
such as an aging workforce and longevity of retirement have caused required 
contribution levels to increase. The City's budget has been unable to absorb these 
increases and therefore the increases have gone unfunded. 

The assets held in trust are severely deficient of the amount needed to pay the 
pension benefits promised to employees over the long term. 

Although the City increased the contributions made to COBERS during 2019 with 
the revenue from sales tax rededications and voter approval of an additional 
rededieation of sales tax on July 11, 2020, the City should continue to find ways 
to provide additional funding to the retirement plan to ensure that the retirement 
system is actuarially funded in accordance with state law. 

Management's 
Response The City's pension plan, as is the case with many defined benefit plans throughout 

the nation, is critically underfiinded. 

In a November 2018 election, two sales taxes were rededicated to COBERS. This 
was effective 1/1/2019 and provides an estimated $550,000 in additional revenue 
for the retirement plan. Another sales tax was rededicated to COBERS in a July 
2020 election. This will provide and estimated $280,000 in additional revenue for 
the retirement plan. 

The City is also exploring ways to reduce expenditures so more funds will be 
available to contribute to the system. 

Current Status The City transferred $2,018,028.81 to COBERS in December 2020. We are 
hopeful that this, along with the additional tax revenues rededicated to the system, 
will significantly reduce the unfunded liability. 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

2019-002 

Criteria 

Condition 

Cause 

Incorrect Treatment of Old Outstanding Checks 

Louisiana Revised Statutes 9:151 etseq. requires that outstanding checks be sent 
to the Louisiana State Treasurer as unclaimed property if they are outstanding after 
a certain time period based on the type of check. 

The City's policy is to void outstanding checks older than twelve months instead 
of researching why the checks have not been cashed or sending these unclaimed 
funds to the State Treasurer in accordance with the statute. This is a repeat 
finding. 

The City's policy of voiding old outstanding items is not in agreement with state 
law. 

Effect The City is not compliant with Louisiana Revised Statutes 9:151 et seq. 

Recommendation The City should change its procedure and research outstanding checks to determine 
is a replacement check to the payee is necessary or send in the unclaimed amounts 
to the State Treasurer according to the Treasurer's holding periods. 

Management's 
Response From our understanding, the outstanding checks were due to other checks being 

reissued. The checks should have been voided. However, we will review all 
outstanding checks in 2020 and ensure that we are compliant with the Louisiana 
statute. 

Current Status The City sent the applicable outstanding checks as unclaimed property to the State 
Treasure. 
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2019-003 

Criteria 

Condition 

Cause 

Effect 

RecommendatiQn 

CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Bond Covenants 

The covenants of the Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2009 A and B, and the Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, the Assets, Revenue and Expenses of the water system operation 
are to be identified and accounted for separately. 

A separate accounting for Water System Operations has not been developed. Parts 
of this finding are a repeat from the prior year. 

The City's finance staff is not familiar with the terms of the bonds, and according 
to them, were misinformed by consultants regarding the need for separate 
accounting for the Water System Operations. 

Violation of bond covenants. 

The Ci^ should periodically review all bond covenants and ensure that the City is 
in compliance. Additionally, the Water and Sewer and Garbage Operations should 
be separated into separate ̂ ds. 

Management's 
Response 

Current Status 

The revenue and expenses are accounted for separately. The assets and liabilities 
have always been combined. We do not have the records to separate these. 
However, we will research this further to try to do so. 

No change from prior year 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Internal Control Matters 

2019-004 

Criteria: 

Condition: 

Effect: 

Cause: 

Recommendation: 

Management's 
Response: 

Current Status 

Internal financial reporting 

Financial reports provided to the mayor and the council should be complete and 
accurate, yet concise and straightforward enough to allow for appropriate 
monitoring of financial condition and decision making. 

The City's internal and monthly financial reporting process did not allow for 
sufficient monitoring and decision making by the mayor and council. This is a 
repeat finding. 

Decisions are being made without complete information. 

The financial reports provide excessive detail of expenditures compared to budget 
for the year, but do not present the financial condition (fund balance). As a result, 
the reports generated by the administrative staff are insufficient for proper 
decision-making. 

Monthly financial reports should include revenues and expenditures compared to 
budget for all major funds of the City as well as the existing fund balance. Fund 
balance should be clearly identified as to what has been previously encumbered 
and what is available for spending. 

The accounting department has been behind on getting the financial statements 
completed each month. However, statements were provided to the Mayor and 
Council throughout the year as they were completed. 

Financial statements were provided throughout the year. 
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2019-005 

Criteria 

Condition 

Cause 

Effect 

Recommendation 

CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Capital Asset Records 

Capital Asset records should be maintained in accordance LA Revised State 
24:515. Capital Asset system should capture information such as tagging numbers 
or identifying numbers, serial numbers, funding source, department, cost and dates 
of purchase. 

Capital Asset accounting records do not contain tagging or serial numbers or 
funding source. Additionally, the records are updated only once per year through 
a manual process lacking efficiency and automation. Part of this is a repeat 
finding. 

Outdated accounting systems and processes. 

Without a centralized and automated process, assets may go unaccounted for. 

The City should centralize and automate its capital asset records and include all 
identifying information and donated assets. 

Management's 
Response 

Current Status 

The City has incorporated the current fixed assets into the financial accounting 
system. Wc are also researching software and equipment to tag the fixed assets. 

No change from prior year 
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CITY OF BOGALUSA, LOUISIANA 
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings 

For the Year Ended December 31,2020 

2019-006 

Criteria 

Documentatioii of Proper Calculation of Retirement Benefits 

Benefit payments should be made in accordance with plan provisions of the City 
of Bogalusa Employee's Retirement System (COBERS) and as set forth in 
Louisiana Revised Statutes RS 11.3031-3053 

Condition 

Cause 

Effect 

RecommendiUion 

Management's 
Response; 

Current Status 

Of a sample of 5 retiree benefits being paid, the benefit being paid to two retirees 
could not be verified by recalculating the benefits paid against the plan provisions. 
The retiree file did not have sufficient documentation to explain the benefit 
calculation and the amount currently being paid. This is a repeat finding. 

The current COBERS administrator and actuary was engaged after these retiree's 
benefit calculations were determined. The pension benefit file for these two 
retirees did not contain sufficient documentation to explain how the pension 
benefit being paid was calculated. 

The City may be paying out the incorrect benefit amounts to retires. 

The City should require COBERS to review all pension beneficiary files to make 
sure the documentation exists on how the pension benefits were determined. This 
documentation should coincide with the current amount being paid in benefits. 

The City will review this issue with the COBERS administrator to ensure the 
correct amount of pension benefits are being paid. 

No change from prior year. 
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